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1. Definitions

In this Disclosure Statement, unless the context otherwise requires:
Act means the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Act 1989;

Bank means Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited;

Banking Group means the Bank and its subsidiaries;

Board means the board of directors of thé Bank;

BOB means Bank of Baroda;

Director means a director of the Bank;

INR means Indian Rupees;

Parent Guarantee has the meaning given in section 3.1; and

USD means United States Dollars.

Unless otherwise defined in this Disclosure Statement, terms defined in the Registered Bank
Disclosure Statements (New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014 (as amended) have
the same meaning in this document.
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2.2

Name and address for service of registered bank

Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited (the “Bank”) was incorporated on 27 May 2008
originally as Baroda (New Zealand) Limited and changed its name to Bank of Baroda (New
Zealand) Limited on the 1 September 2009.

This Disclosure Statement is issued by the Bank for the year ended 31 March 2021 in
accordance with the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (New Zealand Incorporated
Registered Banks) Order 2014 (as amended) (the “Order”).

Words and phrases defined by the Order have the same meanings when used in this
Disclosure Statement.

The Bank is not in the business of insurance.

The full name of the Bank is Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited and its address for
service is:
Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

114 Dominion Road

PB No. 56580, Post Code 1446
Auckland

New Zealand

The Bank's website address is: www.barodanzltd.co.nz

Details of ultimate parent bank and ultimate holding company

(a) Ultimate parent bank

The Bank’s ultimate parent bank is Bank of Baroda, an Indian incorporated bank
(BOB). BOB is subject to regulatory oversight by the Reserve Bank of India and the
Government of India. BOB is not a New Zealand registered bank and is not subject to
regulatory oversight by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand.

The address for service of BOB is:

Bank of Baroda

Baroda Corporate
Centre C-26, G-Block
Bandra Kurla
Complex Mumbai —
400 051 India

(b) Ultimate holding company
BOB is the ultimate holding company of the Bank.

The ultimate parent bank and ultimate holding company’s address for service
is provided under 3.1(a) and 2.2(a).

Shareholding in BOB

As at 31 March 2021, the Government of India held 63.97% of the total shares in BOB.
The remaining 36.03% of the shares in BOB are held by public shareholding (governed
by the laws of India). BOB shares are listed on both the National Stock Exchange
(India) and on the Bombay Stock Exchange (India). Further details concerning the
shareholding in BOB are on its website: www. bankofbaroda.com.

Annual Report of BOB

A copy of the latest BOB Annual Report is on the BOB website:
www.bankofbaroda.com and can be requested from the bank.




2.3

2.4

2.5

(c) A summary of any regulations, legislation or other restrictions of a legally
enforceable nature that may materially inhibit the legal ability of BOB to provide
material financial support to the Bank

BOB (see section 3 below for further information on the guarantee
arrangements) guarantee the obligations of the Bank.

There are no legislative, regulatory or other restrictions of a legally enforceable nature
in India (BOB's country of incorporation) that may materially inhibit the legal ability of
BOB to provide material financial support to the Bank.

Interest in 5% or more of voting securities of the Bank
The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of BOB.

Registered bank

The Bank was incorporated on 27 May 2008 under the Companies Act 1993 as Baroda
(New Zealand) Limited and changed its name to Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited on

1 September 2009 upon registration as a bank at this date.The Bank commenced trading
on 21 June 2010.

Priority of financial liabilities in the event of liquidation

In the unlikely event that the Bank was put into liquidation or ceases to trade, claims of
secured creditors and those creditors set out in the Seventh Schedule of the Companies
Act 1993 (if applicable) would rank ahead of the claims of unsecured creditors. Deposits
from customers are unsecured and rank equally with other unsecured liabilities of the Bank.




Guarantee

3.1

Guarantee arrangements

As at the date of this Disclosure Statement, the obligations of the Bank are
guaranteed by Bank of Baroda (BOB).

A copy of the guarantee of the Bank’s indebtedness given by BOB is

attached as Appendix 1 (Guarantee).

(a) Details of the guarantor

The guarantor is BOB. BOB is the Bank's ultimate parent and ultimate holding company.

BOB is not a member of the Banking Group.

The address for service of the guarantor is:

Bank of Baroda

Baroda Corporate Centre

C-26, G-Block

Bandra Kurla Complex

Mumbai — 400 051

India

As at 31 March 2021, the publicly disclosed capital of BOB was INR 1,010,530 million
(USD13,822 million) representing (Basel Ill) 15.74% of risk weighted exposure.

BOB has the following credit rating applicable to its long-term senior

unsecured obligations (payable in INR):

Rating Agency Current Qualifications Rating Change in
Rating the Last 2 Years
Moody's Investor Ba1 Outlook negative Yes as per comments
Services Limited below
Fitch Ratings BBB- Outlook negative No

On 4 March 2020 Moody's Investor Service downgraded domestic and foreign bank
Long —Term Counterparty Risk Rating (CRR) to Baa3 from Baa?2.
On 2 June 2020 Moody's has placed the Baa3 long term domestic and foreign bank Long
Term Counterparty Risk Rating (CCR) of BOB and their Ba3 Baseline Credit Assessment
(BCA) under review for downgrade.

On 4 September 2020 Moody’s has downgraded the Long Term local and foreign currency
deposit ratings to Ba1 from Baa3 and Baseline Credit Assessment (BCA) to b1 from ba3.
In addition, Moody’s has downgraded Long Term Counterparty Risk Assessment to Ba1.

On 21 June 2020, Fitch Ratings has affirmed the ratings on BOB. The Long-Term
Issuer Default Ratings (IDR) on BOB has been affirmed at 'BBB-' with a change from

stable to negative outlook.

On 3 December 2020 Fitch reaffirmed the rating of BOB at BBB- with negative outlook.

Details of the applicable rating scale can be found at section 8.2 of this

Disclosure Statement.
(b) Details of guaranteed obligations

BOB guarantees due payment of all indebtedness of the Bank to the Bank’s
depositors and other creditors.

There are no limits on the amount of the obligations guaranteed.

U]
(i)

(i)

(iv)

There are no material conditions applicable to the guarantee, other

than non-performance by the Bank.

There are no material legislative or regulatory restrictions in India (BOB's country
of incorporation) that would have the effect of subordinating the claims of the
Bank’s creditors under the Parent Guarantee to other claims on BOB in a winding

up of BOB.

The Parent Guarantee does not have an expiry date.
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Directors

Communications

The address to which any document or communication may be sent to any Director is:

Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

114 Dominion Road

PB No. 56580, Post Code 1446
Auckland

New Zealand

The document or communication should be marked to the attention of the relevant
Director.

Responsible person

The responsible persons authorised to sign this Disclosure Statement on behalf of the
Directors in accordance with section 82 of the Act are Vijay Kumar Goel and Anupam
Srivastava.

Directors’ details

Vijay Kumar Goel

Chairman and Independent Director
B.Com, CA (Australia & New Zealand); FCA (India); FFin
Resident of New Zealand

Interested transactions

Nil

Primary Occupation

Managing Director, Nine Consulting Limited

Other Directorships
Aurea Properties Limited

Sunil Kumar Srivastava

Non-Executive, Non Independent Director
B.Sc., CAlIB
Resident of India

Interested fransactions

Nil

Primary Occupation

Chief General Manager (International Operations), Bank of Baroda, Mumbai, India

Other Direcforships
Bank of Baroda (UK) Limited

Anupam Srivastava

Managing Director (Executive), Non Independent Director
Master of Finance & Control, CAIIB
Resident of New Zealand

Interested fransactions
Nil



Primary Occupation
Managing Director, Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Other Directorships

Nil

Kavita Singh

Non Executive, Non Independent Director

M.Sc., CAlIB
Resident of Australia

Interested transactions
Nil

Primary Occupation
Chief Executive, Bank of Baroda, Australia

Other Directorships

Nil

Kamini Kirthi Reddy

Independent Director

BA/BCOM (majors in Japanese and Accounting), OPM (Harvard
Business School)

CA (Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand)
Resident of New Zealand

Interested fransactions
Nil

Primary Occupation
Director, Reddy group of companies

M no 1 Limited

Escape Marketing Limited

Kirthi Investment Limited
Ashburn No2 Limited

EQ No.1 Limited

Hotel Paihia Limited

RG Infra No.1 Limited

Tanda Hotels (NZ) Limited
Tanda Hotels Management Limited
Russel Cottages Limited

Spartik Trustee Company Limited
RG Coffee Limited

Savala Limited

Reddy Group Limited

RG Infra Limited

Viya Limited

Cloud Group Limited

S no 1 Limited

Other Directorships

Kirthi Trustee Limited

VMR trustee company limited
Ozone Coffee Holdings Limited
West Coast Cocoa Limited

OCR International Limited

Jetwing Symphony PLC, Sri Lanka

Nurani Subramanian Venkatachalam

Independent Director
CA (Chartered Accountant)
Resident of New Zealand
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Interested transactions
Nil

Primary Occupation
Consultant

Other Directorships

Myma Digital Limited (Book Me Bob)

Myma Healthcare Limited

Vishwamithra Limited

Global Organisation for Divinity New Zealand Limited

Changes in the Directorate:

The following were the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors of the
Bank (the “Board”) since 31 March 2020.

On 7 January 2021, Claudio Sandro Oberto resigned as Chairperson of the Board and as a
Director. On the same day Vijay Kumar Goel was appointed as new Chairperson of the
Board.

Nurani Subramanian Venkatachalam was appointed as new Independent Director of the
Board on 7 January 2021,

Conflict of interest:

The Board has a procedure to ensure that conflicts of interest between the Director's duty to
the Bank and their personal, professional or business interests are avoided or dealt with.

Each Director must make full disclosure to the Board of any direct or indirect interest in a matter
relating to the interest of the Bank as soon as practicable where the matter will be discussed
in the Board meeting, in which the Board's practice is to manage any conflict of interest on a
case-by-case basis, depending on the circumstances.

Interested transactions:

There have been no transactions entered into by any Director, or any immediate relative or
close business associate of any Director, with the Bank, or any member of the Banking group:

(a) onterms other than on those which would, in the ordinary course of business of the
bank or any member of the banking group, be given to any other person of like
circumstances or means; or

(b)  which would otherwise be reasonably likely to influence materially the exercise of that
Director's duties.

Audit Committee

The Bank has an Audit Committee.

The members of the Audit Committee as at the date of this Disclosure Statement are:
(c)  Nurani Subramanian Venkatachalam (Chairperson), Independent Director.
(d) Kavita Singh (Member), Non-Executive Director.

(e) Vijay Kumar Goel, (Member), Independent Director.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the oversight of financial reporting disclosures
and other regulatory and statistical compliance.



Auditor

The name and address of the auditor whose independent auditor’s report is referred to in this
Disclosure Statement is:

KPMG

18 Viaduct Harbour Avenue
Auckland 1010
New Zealand

Conditions of registration

Effective 1 February 2021, the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ) issued new conditions of
registration for the Bank amending the liquidity policy. For the purposes of this condition of registration,
the ratios identified must be calculated in accordance with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand
documents entitled “Liquidity Policy” (BS13) dated February 2021 and “Liquidity Policy Annex: Liquid
Assets” (BS13A) dated February 2021.

Effective 1 March 2021 RBNZ proposed changes in the condition of registration that will reinstate
conditions that impose restrictions on the bank’s new residential mortgage lending at high loan —to-
value ratios (LVRs).

The amendment to the conditions of registration prohibit the payment of distributions (including
dividends on ordinary shares), other than discretionary payments payable to holders of Additional Tier
| capital ( AT1) instruments. Amendments were also made to reduce the minimum core funding ratio
from 75% to 50%.

Effective 29 April 2021, the Reserve Bank of New Zealand (RBNZ) further issued revised conditions
of registration for the bank regarding dividend payments from the bank.

The revised conditions of registration apply on and after 29 April 2021, except as provided otherwise
are as follows:

The registration of Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited (“the bank”) as a registered bank is subject
to the following conditions:

That—

(a) the Total capital ratio of the banking group is not less than 8%;

(b) the Tier 1 capital ratio of the banking group is not less than 6%;

(c) the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio of the banking group is not less than 4.5%:

(d) the Total capital of the banking group is not less than $30 million;

(e) the bank must not include the amount of an Additional Tier 1 capital instrument or Tier 2 capital
instrument issued after 1 January 2013 in the calculation of its capital ratios unless it has

received a notice of non-objection to the instrument from the Reserve Bank; and

) the bank meets the requirements of Part 3 of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document
“‘Application requirements for capital recognition or repayment and notification requirements in
respect of capital’ (BS186) dated November 2015 in respect of regulatory capital instruments.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, —
“Total capital ratio”, “Tier 1 capital ratio”, and “Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio" have the same

meaning as in Part 3 of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document “Capital Adequacy Framework
(Standardised Approach)” (BS2A) dated November 2015;



1A.

1B.

1C.

“Total capital’ has the same meaning as in Part 2 of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document
“Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)”’ (BS2A) dated November 2015;

an Additional Tier 1 capital instrument is an instrument that meets the requirements of subsection
8(2)(a) or (c) of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document “Capital Adequacy Framework
(Standardised Approach)” (BS2A) dated November 2015.

a Tier 2 capital instrument is an instrument that meets the requirements of subsection 9(2)(a) or (c) of
the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document “Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)”
(BS2A) dated November 2015.

That—

(a) the bank has an internal capital adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP") that accords with
the requirements set out in the document “Guidelines on a bank’s internal capital adequacy
assessment process (ICAAP’)" (BS12) dated December 2007;

(b) under its ICAAP the bank identifies and measures its “other material risks” defined as all
material risks of the banking group that are not explicitly captured in the calculation of the
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, the Tier 1 capital ratio and the Total capital ratio under the
requirements set out in the document “Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised
Approach)" (BS2A) dated November 2015; and

(c) the bank determines an internal capital allocation for each identified and measured “other
material risk”.

That, if the buffer ratio of the banking group is 2.5% or less, the bank must:

(a) according to the following table, limit the aggregate distributions of the bank’s earnings to the
percentage limit on distributions that corresponds to the banking group’s buffer ratio:

Banking group’s buffer | Percentage limit on distributions of
ratio the bank’s earnings
0% — 0.625% 0%
>0.625 — 1.25% 20%
>1.25 - 1.875% 40%
>1.875 - 2.5% 50%

(b) prepare a capital plan to restore the banking group’s buffer ratio to above 2.5% within any
timeframe determined by the Reserve Bank for restoring the buffer ratio; and

(c) have the capital plan approved by the Reserve Bank.

For the purposes of this condition of registration,~—

“buffer ratio”, “distributions”, and “earnings” have the same meaning as in Part 3 of the Reserve Bank
of New Zealand document: “Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)” (BS2A) dated
November 2015.

That, if the buffer ratio of the banking group is more than 2.5%, the bank must limit aggregate
distributions, other than discretionary payments payable to holders of Additional Tier 1 capital
instruments, to no more than 50% of the bank’s earnings.

For the purposes of this condition of registration,—

an Additional Tier 1 capital instrument is an instrument that meets the requirements of subsection
8.2(a) or (c) of the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document “Capital Adequacy Framework
(Standardised Approach)” (BS2A) dated November 2015;

“buffer ratio”, “distributions” and “earnings” have the same meaning as in Part 3 of the Reserve Bank
of New Zealand document: "Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach)”’ (BS2A) dated
November 2015;

the bank must not make any individual dividend payment contributing to aggregate distributions for a
financial year until it has completed its interim financial accounts for the first six months of its financial
year or its annual financial accounts for its full financial year, and must not make any such dividend
payment less than six months after any previous such dividend payment.



2. That the banking group does not conduct any non-financial activities that in aggregate are material
relative to its total activities.

In this condition of registration, the meaning of “material” is based on generally accepted accounting
practice.

3. That the banking group’s insurance business is not greater than 1% of its total consolidated assets.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, the banking group’s insurance business is the sum
of the following amounts for entities in the banking group:

(a) if the business of an entity predominantly consists of insurance business and the entity is not
a subsidiary of another entity in the banking group whose business predominantly consists of
insurance business, the amount of the insurance business to sum is the total consolidated
assets of the group headed by the entity; and

(b) if the entity conducts insurance business and its business does not predominantly consist of
insurance business and the entity is not a subsidiary of another entity in the banking group
whose business predominantly consists of insurance business, the amount of the insurance
business to sum is the total liabilities relating to the entity’s insurance business plus the equity
retained by the entity to meet the solvency or financial soundness needs of its insurance
business.

In determining the total amount of the banking group's insurance business—

(a) all amounts must relate to on balance sheet items only, and must comply with generally
accepted accounting practice; and

(b) if products or assets of which an insurance business is comprised also contain a non-insurance
component, the whole of such products or assets must be considered part of the insurance
business.

For the purposes of this condition of registration,—

“insurance business” means the undertaking or assumption of liability as an insurer under a contract
of insurance:

“insurer” and “contract of insurance” have the same meaning as provided in sections 6 and 7 of the
Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010.

4, That the aggregate credit exposures (of a non-capital nature and net of any allowances for impairment)
of the banking group to all connected persons do not exceed the rating-contingent limit outlined in the
following matrix:

— -
Credit rating of the bank' 4°°“"e°‘edger’;pjp‘?:’ﬁ:_,'r";"c(a/;;i‘t’;,§“e banking
AA/Aa2 and above
AA-/Aa3 70
A+/A1 60
A/A2 40
A-IA3 30
BBB+/Baal and below 15

Within the rating-contingent limit, credit exposures (of a non-capital nature and net of any allowances
for impairment) to non-bank connected persons shall not exceed 15% of the banking group’s Tier 1
capital.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, compliance with the rating-contingent connected
exposure limit is determined in accordance with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document entitled
“Connected Exposures Policy” (BS8) dated November 2015.

' This table uses the rating scales of Standard & Poor’s, Fitch Ratings and Moody’s Investors Service. (Fitch Ratings’ scale is
identical to Standard & Poor's.)
10



10.

That exposures to connected persons are not on more favourable terms (e.g. as relates to such matters
as credit assessment, tenor, interest rates, amortisation schedules and requirement for collateral) than
corresponding exposures to non-connected persons.

That the bank complies with the following corporate governance requirements:

(a) the board of the bank must have at least five directors;

(b) the majority of the board members must be non-executive directors;

(c) at least half of the board members must be independent directors;

(d) an alternate director,—
(i) for a non-executive director must be non-executive; and
(i) for an independent director must be independent;

(e) at least half of the independent directors of the bank must be ordinarily resident in New
Zealand;

] the chairperson of the board of the bank must be independent; and

(9) the bank's constitution must not include any provision permitting a director, when exercising

powers or performing duties as a director, to act other than in what he or she believes is the
best interests of the company (i.e. the bank).

For the purposes of this condition of registration, “non-executive” and “independent” have the same
meaning as in the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document entitled "Corporate Governance” (BS14)
dated July 2014.

That no appointment of any director, chief executive officer, or executive who reports or is accountable
directly to the chief executive officer, is made in respect of the bank unless:

(a) the Reserve Bank has been supplied with a copy of the curriculum vitae of the proposed
appointee; and

(b) the Reserve Bank has advised that it has no objection to that appointment.
That a person must not be appointed as chairperson of the board of the bank unless:

(a) the Reserve Bank has been supplied with a copy of the curriculum vitae of the proposed
appointee; and

(b) the Reserve Bank has advised that it has no objection to that appointment.

That the bank has a board audit committee, or other separate board committee covering audit matters,
that meets the following requirements:

(a) the mandate of the committee must include: ensuring the integrity of the bank’s financial
controls, reporting systems and internal audit standards;

(o) the committee must have at least three members;
(c) every member of the committee must be a non-executive director of the bank;
(d) the majority of the members of the committee must be independent; and

(e) the chairperson of the committee must be independent and must not be the chairperson of the
bank.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, “non-executive” and “independent” have the same
meaning as in the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document entitled “Corporate Governance” (BS14)
dated July 2014,

That a substantial proportion of the bank’s business is conducted in and from New Zealand.
11



11.

11A.

12.

13.

14.

Before and on 30 April 2021, that the banking group complies with the following quantitative

requirements for liquidity-risk management:

(a) the one-week mismatch ratio of the banking group is not less than zero per cent at the end of
each business day;

(b) the one-month mismatch ratio of the banking group is not less than zero per cent at the end
of each business day; and

(c) the one-year core funding ratio of the banking group is not less than 50 per cent at the end of
each business day.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, the ratios identified must be calculated in accordance
with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand documents entitled “Liquidity Policy” (BS13) dated January
2018 and “Liquidity Policy Annex: Liquid Assets” (BS13A) dated October 2018.

On and after 1 May 2021, that the banking group complies with the following quantitative requirements
for liquidity-risk management:

(a) the one-week mismatch ratio of the banking group is not less than zero per cent at the end of
each business day;

(b) the one-month mismatch ratio of the banking group is not less than zero per cent at the end
of each business day; and

(c) the one-year core funding ratio of the banking group is not less than 50 per cent at the end of
each business day.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, the ratios identified must be calculated in accordance
with the Reserve Bank of New Zealand documents entitled “Liquidity Policy” (BS13) dated May 2021
and “Liquidity Policy Annex: Liquid Assets” (BS13A) dated May 2021.

That the bank has an internal framework for liquidity risk management that is adequate in the bank’s
view for managing the bank’s liquidity risk at a prudent level, and that, in particular:

(a) is clearly documented and communicated to all those in the organisation with responsibility for
managing liquidity and liquidity risk;

(b) identifies responsibility for approval, oversight and implementation of the framework and
policies for liquidity risk management;

(c) identifies the principal methods that the bank will use for measuring, monitoring and controlling
liquidity risk; and

(d) considers the material sources of stress that the bank might face, and prepares the bank to
manage stress through a contingency funding plan.

That no more than 10% of total assets may be beneficially owned by a SPV.

For the purposes of this condition,—

“total assets” means all assets of the banking group plus any assets held by any SPV that are not

included in the banking group’s assets:

“SPV" means a person—

(a) to whom any member of the banking group has sold, assigned, or otherwise transferred any
asset;

()] who has granted, or may grant, a security interest in its assets for the benefit of any holder of
any covered bond; and

(c) who carries on no other business except for that necessary or incidental to guarantee the
obligations of any member of the banking group under a covered bond:

“covered bond” means a debt security issued by any member of the banking group, for which repayment

to holders is guaranteed by a SPV, and investors retain an unsecured claim on the issuer.

That—

(a) no member of the banking group may give effect to a qualifying acquisition or business
combination that meets the notification threshold, and does not meet the non-objection
threshold, unless:

12



15.

16.

17.

18.

(i the bank has notified the Reserve Bank in writing of the intended acquisition or
business combination and at least 10 working days have passed; and

(i) at the time of notifying the Reserve Bank of the intended acquisition or business
combination, the bank provided the Reserve Bank with the information required under
the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Banking Supervision Handbook document
“Significant Acquisitions Policy” (BS15) dated December 2011; and

(b) no member of the banking group may give effect to a qualifying acquisition or business
combination that meets the non-objection threshold unless:
(N the bank has notified the Reserve Bank in writing of the intended acquisition or
business combination;

(i) at the time of notifying the Reserve Bank of the intended acquisition or business
combination, the bank provided the Reserve Bank with the information required under
the Reserve Bank of New Zealand Banking Supervision Handbook document
“Significant Acquisitions Policy” (BS15) dated December 2011; and

iii) the Reserve Bank has given the bank a notice of non-objection to the significant
acquisition or business combination.

For the purposes of this condition of registration, “qualifying acquisition or business combination”,
“notification threshold” and “non-objection threshold” have the same meaning as in the Reserve Bank
of New Zealand Banking Supervision Handbook document “Significant Acquisitions Policy” (BS15)
dated December 2011.

That, for a loan-to-valuation measurement period ending on or before 30 September 2021, the total of
the bank’s qualifying new mortgage lending amount in respect of property-investment residential
mortgage loans with a loan-to-valuation ratio of more than 70%, must not exceed 5% of the total of the
qualifying new mortgage lending amount in respect of property-investment residential mortgage loans
arising in the loan-to-valuation measurement period.

That, for a loan-to-valuation measurement period ending on or after 31 October 2021, the total of the
bank'’s qualifying new mortgage lending amount in respect of property-investment residential mortgage
loans with a loan-to-valuation ratio of more than 60%, must not exceed 5% of the total of the qualifying
new mortgage lending amount in respect of property-investment residential mortgage loans arising in
the loan-to-valuation measurement period.

That, for a loan-to-valuation measurement period, the total of the bank’s qualifying new mortgage
lending amount in respect of non property-investment residential mortgage loans with a loan-to-
valuation ratio of more than 80%, must not exceed 20% of the total of the qualifying new mortgage
lending amount in respect of non property-investment residential mortgage loans arising in the loan-
to-valuation measurement period.

That the bank must not make a residential mortgage loan unless the terms and conditions of the loan
contract or the terms and conditions for an associated mortgage require that a borrower obtain the
registered bank’s agreement before the borrower can grant to another person a charge over the
residential property used as security for the loan.

In these conditions of registration,—

“banking group” means Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited (as reporting entity) and all other
entities included in the group as defined in section 6(1) of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 for
the purposes of Part 7 of that Act.

“generally accepted accounting practice” has the same meaning as in section 8 of the Financial
Reporting Act 2013.

In conditions of registration 15 to 18,—

“loan-to-valuation ratio”, “non property-investment residential mortgage loan”’, “property-investment
residential mortgage loan®, “qualifying new mortgage lending amount in respect of property-investment

n o

residential mortgage loans”, “qualifying new mortgage lending amount in respect of non property-
investment residential mortgage loans”, and “residential mortgage loan” have the same meaning as
in the Reserve Bank of New Zealand document entitled “Framework for Restrictions on High-LVR
Residential Mortgage Lending” (BS19) dated January 2019:

13



“loan-to-valuation measurement period” means—

(a)
(b)

the six calendar month period ending on the last day of August 2021; and

thereafter a period of six calendar months ending on the last day of the sixth calendar month,

the first of which ends on the last day of September 2021.

Pending proceedings or arbitration

As at the date of this Disclosure Statement is signed, there are no pending proceedings or
arbitration concerning the Bank, whether in New Zealand or elsewhere, that may have a

material adverse effect on the Bank.

Credit rating

8.1

Rating information

The credit rating of the Bank is as follows:

Inc. Issuer
Default

Rating

Rating Type of | Current Rating | Qualifications Rating
Agency Rating Change in the

Last 2 Years
Fitch IBCA, [Long-term BBB- Outlook negative No

On 21 June 2020, Fitch Ratings has affirmed the above ratings with a change from stable to

negative outlook.

On 3 December 2020 Fitch reaffirmed the rating of BOB at BBB- with negative outlook.

8.2 Applicable ratings scales

questionable value

Long Term Debt Ratings Moody’s S&P FITCH
Highest quality/Extremely strong capacity Aaa AAA AAA
to pay interest and principal

High quality/Very strong Aa AA AA
Upper medium grade/Strong A A A
Medium grade (lowest investment Baa BBB BBB
grade)/Adequate

Predominately speculative/Less Ba BB BB
near term vulnerability to default

Speculative, low grade/Greater B B B
vulnerability

Poor to default/identifiable vulnerability Caa CCC CCC
Highest speculations Ca CcC CC
Lowest quality, no interest C C C
Payment in default, in arrears — D D

Moody’s applies numeric modifiers 1, 2 and 3 to show relative standing within the major
rating categories with 1 indicating the higher end of that category and 3 indicating the lower

end.

Fitch and S&P apply plus (+) or minus (-) signs to ratings to show relative standing within

the major rating categories.
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9. Historical summary of financial statements

. For.the year ended 31
- March NZ $000’s

2021 2020 2019 2018 : 2017
Statement of comprehensive income
Interest income 4,864 5,279 4,968 4,593 3,922
Interest expense (1,523) (1,986) (1,828) (1,504) (1,186)
Net interest income 3,341 3,293 3,140 3,089 2,736
Other income 1,132 1,144 1,231 1,480 1,760
Total operating income 4,473 4,437 4,371 4,569 4,496
Impairment losses on loans and advances 41 (219) 6) (67) (26)
Other expenses (3,000) (3,005) (3,002) (2,931) (3,174)
Net profit before taxation 1,514 1,213 1,363 1,571 1,296
Taxation (expense)/benefit (408) (321) (457) (428) (382)
Net profit after taxation 1,108 892 906 1,143 914
Minority interests - - - - -
Dividends paid - 123 51 - -
- As at-31 March
NZ $000’s ;'
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Balance sheet
Total assets 148,221 131,871 125,258 115,879 103,021
Total individually impaired assets - - - - -
Total liabilities 98,241 82,999 77,155 68,684 56,969
Total shareholder equity 49,980 48,872 48,103 47,195 46,052
For the year ended 31
--March NZ $000’s ‘,
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Summary of Cash Flow Statement
Operating activities (5,657) 18,712 (2,287) (8,303) 10,046
Investing activities (36) (6) - (2) -
Financing activities (250) (341) (51) - -

The amounts disclosed in this historical summary of financial statements have been taken from the audited
financial statements of the Bank, which were prepared in accordance with New Zealand equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards.
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10. Banking Group

At the date of this Disclosure Statement, the Bank does not have any subsidiarles and Is the only member
of the Banking Group.

11. Other material matters

There are no other matters relating to the business or affairs of the Bank, other than those contained in this
Disclosure Statement that, If disclosed, would materlally affect the declslon of a person to subscribe for debt
securities of which the Bank Is the issuer. '

12. Directors' statements

Each Director of the Bank, after due inquiry, belleves as at the date of signing
that this Disclosure Statement; '

(@)  contains all the information that Is required by the Order; and
(b)  Is not false or misleading.
Each Director of the Bank, after due enquiry, believes that for the year ended 31 March 2021:

(a)  the Bank had complied with all conditions of registration imposed by the Reserve Bank
of New Zealand under section 74 of the Reserve Bank Act 1989;

(b) credit exposures to connected persons were not contrary to interests of the Banking
Group; and

(c) the Bank had systems In place to monitor and contral adequately the Banking Group's material
risks, including credlt risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, currency risk, equity
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and ather business risks, and that those systems were being
properly applied.

For and on behalf of all of the Directors of the Bank (by Directors' Resolutlonl), this Disclosure Statement s
dated at Auckland, New Zealand this 25" day of June 2021 and signed by Vijay Kumar Goel and Anupam
Srivastava as responslble persons,

oé‘:wu wa

Vijay Kymar Goel Anupam Srlvastava
Chalrman Managing Director
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13. Independent auditor’s report

The independent auditor’s report on this Disclosure Statement is attached with the financial statements
of the Bank in Appendix 2 to this Disclosure Statement. The information required by Schedule 1 of the
Order is included in the independent auditor's report.

14. Financial statements

The financial statements for the Bank for the year ended 31 March 2021 are attached at Appendix 2,
and form part of, this Disclosure Statement. The information required by Schedules 2, 4, 7, 9, 13, 14,
15, and 17 of the Order is set out in those financial statements.
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Deed of Guarantee

relnting ta

all Indebledness of Bank of Baroda (New Zaaland) Limiled fo the
Creditors

. BankofBaroda ' '
. Quaraptor

Date 14.08.2008

.

e sty e S, 2, S, st e, Bl 400 081, W
onal Divisfon Barada Carporate Centpe, €26, G-Blook, Bantra-Kurla Oomplex, Mumbal 400 051, Indla,

i / Phorie : 61 22 6608 5000-04, 6698 5426 (1 et/ Fax 1 01 22 2852 3605

#er ) E-mall : gm.international,boc@bankomareda.com (I T Web : www.bankofbaroda.com

.

. S iathm—ty [LXY
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. hy

This Dead of Guarantee s made on 13" August, 2008

Bank of Baretla (Guarantor)

lntroductioq
Atthe request of the Bank, the Guarantor hus:agread lo guarantee all of the indebledness of the Bank

to the Oreditors on the terms ofthis Deed.

It is agreed

. “ttmterpratation

1.2

Sy

Definitlons

In thia Daag:

Bank mesns Baroda (New Zealand) Limlted ({o be ranamed Bank of Barada {Naw Zealand)
Limited);

Cregitor means a person fo whom the Bank owes indebledness, inchuding, for the
aveidance of doubt, any depositor of the Bank; end

Guarantesd Indebtedness means &l'*~~-*1dness of the Bank {o tha Credors,
Construction of certain refere.. ___

In this Daed:

an agreament neludes a contraot, dead, lloanos, undertaking and other document or legally
enforcaable arrangement In Weiting (present and fulurs) and fnolides that dacument as
amended, assigned, npvaled or substituled from tme fo thne!

a businoss day means a day (other than a Salurday or Sunday) on which reglslered banks
are apen for general banking husiness In Wellington and, where payment is requirad in
forelgn currenoy, hanks are open far business th the requlred place of payment;

a gonsent includes an approval, authorlsation, exemptlon, fillng, lkeencs, order, pernilt,
raconding and raglsiration;

costs fnourrad by a person Incfude all sommisslons, ofiarges, losses, expenses (Ineluding
legal fees on @ solicitor and own ellent basls) and taxas incirred by that person;

A guarantes means a sbrefyship, the econamle elfest of which is to assume responsiblity
fur the Indebtedness or obligations of another person;

Indebtedness includes any obligatian (Whelher present or futiire, secured or uhsecured,
Joint or eaveral, as pringipa), surety or otherwise) refating to the payment of money;

tha Jiquidation of a persen indudes the disselution, adrminlstration, windfog-up snd
bankruploy of that person and any analogous procedure under the law of any Jurisdiction in
Which that person Is incarporated, domlclled, cares on buslness or has properiy;

priRe @, W26, Sit-wtes, T pal atades, §od 400 081, TR
1 Baroda Qorporale Genlre, .26, @-Blook, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Mumbat 400 051, IndJa.

;lrslo

Phop?:'z 54 22 6098 £00D-04, 6598 B4a8 B Ywrer/ Fax ; 81 222652 3609

wail gmintsmaflonalboc@bankofvarada.com* D 8t { Web : www.bankofbarada.com

- L O el U v b—— . . -
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a peraon Inoludes an Mdividual, hody corporate, an‘assoclation of pergons (Whether
eoiporate or nof), a fust, a state, an ageney of a state and any ofher enllly {In each case,
establishad for fawful purhoses and whather or ot having separate lagal parsonaliy);

property Inoludes the whole and any part of the felevant person's business, assels,
undetiaking, revenues and tighls (in each oase, present and future), and reference ta any
property Inaludes any legal or equitable Inferestin Ik J

writing inofudes an authehtioated sfMF‘r message, facsimile {ransmission, an emall
communicalion and any means of reproducing words I a tanglble and permananily visible

forem; .
a refierence to w party, clause, sohetlule or annexure s a faforence o a parly to, clause of,
sohedule to of annexure o, this Deev; .

the word including whan introdusing an example does not imit the meaning of the words fo
which the example relates;

an agreement, representation or undertaking giver by the Guarantor In favour of iwo or more
persons is for fhe banefit of them Johtly and each of them sevarally; to.the extant of
oumulative ndebiedness anly;

agenderincludes each other genden
the singular Includes the plurel and vice versa; .

Where a word or phrase s defined, ifs olher grammatical forms have a correspohding
meaning; and

any legistation Includes a madification and re-snaciment of, legislation enaoled In
substitutian for, end a regulation, orderin-counell and other Instrument from time fo ime .
lssued or mada under, that legletation.

2)1

2.2

2.3

Herdings and the tablb of contents are fo be lgnorad In consfrulng thls Daad,

Guarantee and indemnity

Cuarantee
The Guarantor unconditionally and frravosably guaranteeso the Crediiors due paymenthy
the Bank of the Guaranteed Indebtedness,

Payment

The Guarantor underlakes {o the Credlifers that If, for any reason, the Bank daes nat pey o
the Crealtors when due (whelher by:acosleration or ofherwise) any Guarantesd
Indeblatiness, it will pry the ralevant amotint to eash relsvant Cradilor Immediataly on
recelving a written demand from the Creditor ascampanied by proof of the relevant
Guaranteed Indaitadnoss,

Unenfarceability of obllgations ‘

As @ geparale ehd continuing undertaking, the Guarantor unconditlonally and irrevacably
undettakes to the Creditors that, should any Guarantesd Indeltedness rot be renovarabla

4) Division Batoda Corgorale Oentee, C-26, G-Binok, Bahdra-Kurla Complex, Mumbal 400 059, jndla.

’ ﬁﬁ%\mqwaﬁm,%ze, Sfvwle, gt e, € 400 051, wieer
Y Internato
& )

&

Wi

91 22 6898 000,04, 6698 6426 {1 e/ Fav s 9122 2652 3609
{ gm.intetnational hew@bankofbaroda.com [ 3 7 Web  wwwhiankobarota.com

M el
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(a) adefeotin ortagk of powers of the Bank or the Guarantor or the Irggular exaruise of thase
powers; or

(b) & defeot in or Jack of authority by & person purporting to act on kehalf of the Bankor
the Guaranior; or . ,

{®) = lenal or other limitation (whether under the Limitation Act 1880 or olherwiss), disability or
incapaotty of the Bank or the Guarantor; or

(d) & liquidation, amalgamation, change in elatus, conslitution or gontrol, reconstrustion or
tearganisation of the Bank or the Guarantor {or tha commengement of stepe to effect the same),

It will, as & sola and indapendent obligation, pay to the Greditors on demang the amotint that the
Credltors would ptherwise have been able 1o racover (on & full Indemnily basls). In thls tlavse, he
eXpression “Guarantead Indebtednass” Inoludes any Indehlodness that would have been Included in
that expresslon but for anything referred to In this clause. ’ .

3. _ Nature of guarantee obligat}ons

31 Liability as sole principa) debtor ,

As belween the Guarantor and the GCreditars (but without affecting the obllgations of the Bank) the
Guarantor Is lfable Under this Deed In relation to the Guarantead Indebtedness as IF it were the sole and
prinalpal debtor, However, the Bank will ‘be discharged from Its obilgations In respaot of any
Guaranteed Indsbiedness fo the extent of any payment made by the Guarantor in sefation to that

Guaranleed Indebledness,
82 Nodissharge

The Guarentor is not discharged, norars it obllgations atfeoted, by:
(@  any time, indulgence, walver or consent atany ime given o the Bank; or

() en smendment (however fundamental) to, or replacement of, any agresment; or

()  the Nlquldation, amalgamation, change In status, Sonstitution or conlrol, reconstruction or
reorganisation of the Bank (or the comtmencement of steps 1o effavt any of these),

4, Paymenis
41  Mode of payments .

Each paym'ent lo a Greditor under this Deed Is to be made on fhe dug date In Immediately avallable
Treely transferable funds In the manner that the Craditor, by notice to the Guarantor, spatifies from lime

to time,

4

Payments to be free and olear
Each payment by the Guarantor to a Creditor under this Deed [a to be made:

(a) free of any restration or condition; and

/‘“ e aniRte ez, W26, s, argiol wede, G400 051,
nterna

{ A afjoral Diviston Baroda Corporale Gentre, G-28, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Murbal 400 051, Indla,
i *ﬁff’%hong 3122 6698 6000-04, 6608 5426 [ Harm/ Faet 01 22 2652 3500
@f@ﬂ gm.intesnalional beo@bankomarada.com 0 ) Web : wiwbankofbaroda.com

¥
\.\'L')f >t
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(b) ¥ree and clear of and without any detiuctlon or withholding for or on account of tax or
on another account, whether by way of set-off, aounteralalm or athenwlse {except lo

4 the extent required by faw).

4.3 Relnstatement
If & payment made by the Guarankr to g Creditor pursuant o this Deed s avolded by
aw!

(a) that payment will be deemed not fo have tscharged or affected the relavant obligation
. of the Guarantor; and

(b) that Greditor and thé Guarantor will be deemed to be restored to the position in which
each would havé been IFthat payment had; not besn made.

6. Assignment .
Nalther the Quarantor nor a Cradifor may agsign or fransfer any of s ¥ghis or obligations
under this Dead,
6. Nofices

8.1 Addresses and referenges

Eaoh notlee or other communieation under thig Deed 15 o be made In writing and sent by

SWIFT messaging, personal dellvery or post to e addressee at the address, and marked

for the attentfon of the person or affics holder (IFany), from Yme to time doslgnated for the

purpose by the addressee to the other parly. The SWIFT code, address and televant

ﬁerson or office holder of the Guarantor, and the address end relavant person or offlce
older of the Bank, Is set out In the Scheduls, :

6.2 Deeted delivery ]
No communlcatlon wiil be effeotive until received In legible form,

7. Remedies and waivers

7.1 Bxercise of rfgm;s and walvers '

Time fs of the essence In respect of all dates and mes for compllance by the Guarantar
with the Guerantor's obligallons under this Deed, However, fallure 1o exeralse, and delay
In exercising, a right of a Greditor under this Dsed will not operate as a walver of that right,
subjeot to laws of limitatian, hor will a gingle or pertial exerciae of a tight preoitde anofher
or further exerclse of that right or the exerolse of anothier,right, No walver by a Greditor of
thaétd (t‘:redltor‘s rights under this Deed is effaslive unless It fs In writlng slgned by that
Creditor.

.

7.2Remadies cumulative

. The rghts of the Creditors under this Dasd are éumulative and not excluslve of any rights
providad by law. .

: v s sty et v, w26, Sheeife, g e, 5d 400 051, Wrer
LIRS &l Divislon Baroda Comorale Genlre, G-26, G-Blook, Bandra-Kuria Complex, Mumbal 400 051, Indla,

b/
'{é’mﬁ /91225690 500-04, 6508 5426 1 Werg'{ Fax : 91 22 2652 3508
FRTVEGNA om Interaational oo@bankofbarada.com § 3%/ Web wwwbankamaroda.com

Dalslon /2
'é)n g
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8. Miscellaneous

8.1 Partial invalldity

The lllegality, invalidlly or Unenforaeatllity of & provisian ef this Deed under any law will
not affeot the legallty, valldity or enforcaabllity of that provision undier another law orffie
legallty, valldty or enforeeablitly of anotherparson.

’

8.2 Enforcement by Creditors

For tha purposes of the Conirasls (Privity) Act 1982, the Guarantor acknowledges and
accepls that its obligations under this Desd shall be enftreaable by the Credftors,

L Gove‘rnin.g law and jurisdiction

9.1 Governing law ’ ,
This Desd Is governad by and Is to be construad In aacordance with New Zealand law.

9.2 Ih New Zealand

Faoh of the pariles frevooably and unoanditionally agrees that the Cours of New
Zaalend shall have Jurisdiolion to hear and determine aach sulf, acton oy proceading
(proceedings), and to setfle disputes, that may exfse out of or In connection with this
Deed and far these purposes irevogably submits ta the Junisdletlon ofthose courls,

9.3 Service in New Zeatand

The Guarantor agrees that the pracess by which any sult, action ar proceeding in New
Zealand Is begun may be served on It by belng delivered to the Bank without prejudice
to any other lawful means of servics, The address and levant person or office holdey
of the Bank Is set out In the Schedule,

I Ralar e S, W26, S, T gl iRt a1 400 081,
international-Divjsibit Baroda Gorgorate Contie, G-26, G-Blaok, BandraKurla Gomplex, Murbal 400 054, ndle,
nhvc/epg{::e,ﬁsmé 06 8000-04, 6698 6426 [l Fawr/ Fax ; f 22 2652 8500

#r/ Bmalt { gm,Inlernationatbco@bankofbaroda,com b 3/ Wah s waw,bankefyarada,com
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Execution X
Byeouled as a degd

This Desd of Gaurantee in favour of the
Oreditors of Bank of Baroda (New Zeafand)
Limited Is executed oh this the 14™ day of
August 2008 by Bank of Baroda, a hody
corpotate constifuted under the Banking

. Companles (Acquisilon & Transfer of

. Undertakings) Act, 1970 and having i(s
Head Office at Mandvi, Baroda, Indla and ,

* {ts Corporate Office at Barods Corporate

Cenlre, .28, @.Block, Bandra, Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbal, Indla, by
fts altorney In the presenca of :

Yo o = T

Witness Blonatiire™ Altdmey* -
* BHAGAT SINGH BISHT ' RAJENDRA KUMAR GARG
Print Neme PiintName

o
. [N

Assit, General Manager .
{Internationa) Operations)

Oooupalion

Baroda Corporata Centre

G-26, G- Blook

Bandra Kurla Gomplex .
Mumbal ~400 05+

INDIA

Address

»

LT BTdlerAveR, w26, e, qrararat v, gk 400 051, W

Intemational DN Harida Gorporate Cantre, 3_;‘2;3. G-Blovk, Bardra-Kurlz Complex, Mumbal 400 054, Indla,
it ) Phono t 81 22,6098 §000-04, 8688 5426 U 7 Fax : 9122 2662 3609

$er / E-mall : genntemational boc@bankofaroda,com { 39 ) Web :wwwibankefbaroda,com
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The Schedule
Party Details
Guarantor Detalls
Name Bank of Barptia
Addrass for Notlses Plot No, G-26, G-Blook,
Bandra-Kurla Qomplex,
Bandra (East), Mumbal ~ 400081,
Indig,
Attention General Manager (Intetnational
Operatldng)
Telephone Numbey +01-22-B6985464/6426
Emall : ‘ am.International.bes@bankofbarada,oom
SWIFT Code BARBINBBXXX
Bank Deteils , ‘
Neme ' Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited
Address Tor Notices The Bank's ragistered offlon
Aftention ) . Managing Director
- 7

IS R, <028, Sl st et G 400 051, www
IntetnationaM0IRsHsh BeFada Carporele Cenlre, G-26, G-Blovk, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Mumbal 400 054, Indla.
<7/ Phone *YR22.6698 B00D.4, 6686 5426 [ Herer/ Fa s 1 22 2652 3600

€%/ B-mall : gmintarmrational boe@bankolbaroda.com 0 e/ Wab : wwwbarkofarods.com
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Appendix 2: Financial statements

Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited
Company Number 2135104

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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ndependent Auditor's Repor

To the shareholder of Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Report on the audit of the Disclosure Statement

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial
statements (excluding supplementary information
relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory
Liquidity Requirements) of Bank of Baroda (New
Zealand) Limited {the '‘Bank’) on pages 34 to 79:

i. give a true and fair view of the Bank's financial
position as at 31 March 2021 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year ended
on that date; and

comply with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, which in this instance
means New Zealand Equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards ('NZIFRS') and
International Financial Reporting Standards
{'IFRS").
In our opinion, the supplementary information
(excluding supplementary information relating to
Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity
Requirements) that is required to be disclosed in
accordance with Schedules 4, 7, 13, 14, 15 and 17
of the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements
(New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks)
Order 2014 (as amended) (the ‘Order’):

i. has been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the guidelines issued pursuant
1o section 78(3) of the Reserve Bank of New
Zealand Act 1989 and any conditions of
registration,

is in accordance with the books and records of
the Bank in all material respects; and

fairly states the matters to which it relates in
accordance with those Schedules

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements and supplementary information
(excluding supplementary information relating to
Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity
Requirements) which comprise:

- the statement of financial position as at 31
March 2021;

the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year
then ended;

notes, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory
information; and

the information that is required to be disclosed
in accordance with Schedules 4, 7, 13, 14, 16
and 17 of the Order.

=

v

We conducted our Audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) ('ISA’s (NZ)). We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Basis for Opinion

© 2021 KPMG, a New Zealand Partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of
independent member firms affilisted with KPMG International Limited, a private English company
limited by guarantee. All rights reserved.
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We are independent of the Bank in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 International Code of
Ethics for Assurance Practitioners {Including International independence Standards) (New Zealand) issued by the
New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants {including International Independence
Standards) ('IESBA Code’), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code.

Our responsibilities under ISA (NZ) are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements {excluding supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity
Requirements) section of our report.

Our firm has also provided other services to the Bank in relation to review of the Bank’s half-year Disclosure
Statement and audit of the Bank's Group Reporting Package for the year ended 31 March 2021. Subject to
certain restrictions, partners and employees of our firm may also deal with the Bank on normal terms within the
ordinary course of trading activities of the business of the Bank. These matters have not impaired our
independence as auditor of the Bank. The firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the Bank.

@@ Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. Materiality helped us to determine the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually
and on the financial statements as a whole. The materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set at
$493,000 determined with reference to a benchmark of the Bank's net assets. We chose the benchmark
because, in our view, this is a key measure of the Bank’s financial strength.

a Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements in the current period. We summarise below those matters and our key audit
procedures to address those matters in order that the shareholder as a body may better understand the process
by which we arrived at our audit opinion. Our procedures were undertaken in the context of and solely for the
purpose of our statutory audit opinion on the financial statements as a whole and we do not express discrete
opinions on separate elements of the financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Provision for credit impairment (31 March 2021: $467k)

Refer to Note & {(credit loss Our audit procedures included:

allowance) to the Disclosure , , , .
) s Testing key controls relating to the Bank’s lending, credit

Statement. . o . ) .

review and loan monitoring processes, including testing the
The expected credit loss (ECL) approval of new lending facilities and review of the provision
provision is a key audit matter owing for credit impairment calculation.

to the financial significance of loans
and advances and the high degree of
judgement and complexity involved
in estimating the provision, including Determining high risk criteria that could indicate a loan is at
the ongoing impact of COVID-19. higher risk of being individually impaired;

e Provisions for loans identified as impaired (individual
provisions)
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The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

There is judgement involved in
identifying whether a loan is
individually impaired, and if
recognised, further judgement with
the assessment of expected future
cash flows, principally derived from
estimating the timing and proceeds
from the future sale of the property
securing the loans.

For the provision for non-impaired
loans, judgement is required to
incorporate a forward-looking
economic view in the estimation of
the collective provision and the
probabhility of default {PD) in the
future and the amount of loss given
default (LGD).

Using these high risk criteria, selecting a sample of loans for
testing and performed an independent assessment of whether
the loan should have a provision for impairment.

Provision estimated for the loan portfolio as a whole
{collective provisioning)

We involved our technical specialists to develop an alternative
comparison ECL model using the observable industry data
relating to the probability of default and loss given default. The
collective provision derived from the alternative comparison
ECL model was compared to the Bank's collective provision to
assess if the Bank’s collective provision is within an
acceptable range.

Assessing the Bank's significant accounting policies and
disclosures in the financial statements against the
requirements of the accounting standards.

i —— Other information

The Directors, on behalf of the Bank, are responsible for the other information included in the Bank’s Disclosure
Statement. Other information includes the information required to be included in the Disclosure Statement in
accordance with Schedule 2 of the Order on pages 1 to 25 that accompanies the financial statements, and the
supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements. Our opinion on
the Disclosure Statement does not cover any other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Disclosure Statement our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Disclosure statement or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears materially misstated. if, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

o Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with the requirements of clauses 2(1)(d) and 2(1)(e) of Schedule 1 of the Order, we report that:
— we have obtained all the information and explanations we have required; and

— in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank, as far as appears from our
examination of those records.
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n Responsibilities of Directors for the financial statements and

supplementary information (excluding supplementary information relating to
Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements)

The Directors, on behalf of the Bank, are responsible for:

— the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Clause 24 of the Order,
NZ IFRS and International Financial Reporting Standards;

— the preparation and fair presentation of supplementary information (excluding the supplementary
information relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements), in accordance with
Schedules 2, 4, 7, 13, 14, 15 and 17 of the Order;

— implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of financial statements that are fairly
presented and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

— assessing the ability to continue as a going concern. This includes disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

X L Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements and

supplementary information (excluding supplementary information
relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements)

Our objective is:

— 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Disclosure Statement, including the financial statements
prepared in accordance with Clause 24 of the Order, and supplementary information {excluding the
supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements), in
accordance with Schedules 4, 7, 13, 14, 16 and 17 of the Order as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

- 10 issue an independent auditor’s report that includes our opinion,

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranteé that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISA's {NZ) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of these financial statements is located at the External
Reporting Board (XRB) website at:
hitp://www . xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities/audit-repori-2/

This description forms part of our independent auditor’s report.
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Review conclusion on the supplementary information relating to Capital
Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements

Based on our review, nothing has come to our We have reviewed the supplementary
attention that causes us to believe that the information relating to Capital Adequacy and
supplementary information relating to Capital Regulatory Liquidity Requirements, as
Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements, disclosed in notes 33 and 34 of the Disclosure
disclosed in notes 33 and 34 to the Disclosure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021.
Staternent, is not, in all material respects disclosed The supplementary information relating to
in accordance with Schedule 9 of the Order. Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity
Requirements comprises the information that
is required to be disclosed in accordance with
Schedule 9 of the Order.

Q Basis for conclusion on the supplementary information relating to
Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements

A review of the supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements
in accordance with NZ SRE 2410 Review of Financial Statements Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity ('NZ SRE 2410') is a limited assurance engagement. Our responsibilities under that standard are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Review of the supplementary information relating to Capital
Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements section of our report.

As the auditor of Bank of Baroda {(New Zealand) Limited, NZ SRE 2410 requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements relevant to the audit of the annual financial statements.

n Responsibilities of Directors for the supplementary information
relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy and
Regulatory Liquidity Requirements that is required to be disclosed under Schedule 9 of the Order and prepared
in accordance with the Capital Adequacy Framework (Standardised Approach) (BS2A) and described in notes 33
and 34 to the Disclosure Statement.

X f,\ Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the supplementary

information relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity
Requirements

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the supplementary information relating Capital Adeqguacy and
Regulatory Liquidity Requirements based on our review. We conducted our review in accordance with NZ SRE
2410 issued by the New Zealand External Reporting Board.
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As the auditor of Bank of Baroda {New Zealand) Limited, NZ SRE 2410 requires that we plan and perform the
review to obtain limited assurance about whether the supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy
and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements is, in all material respects disclosed in accordance with Schedule 9 of the
Order.

A review of the supplementary information relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements
in accordance with NZ SRE 2410 is a limited assurance engagement. The auditor performs procedures, primarily
consisting of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and
applying analytical and other review procedures.

The procedures performed in a review are substantially less than those performed in an audit conducted in
accordance with ISA's (NZ). Accordingly we do not express an audit opinion on the supplementary information
relating to Capital Adequacy and Regulatory Liquidity Requirements disclosures.

$ - .
X%} Use of this independent auditor’s report

This independent auditor’s report is made solely to the shareholder as a body. Our work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the shareholder those matters we are required to state to them in the independent
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the shareholder as a body for our work, this independent auditor’s report, or
any of the opinions or conclusions we have formed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Kay Baldock.

For and on behalf of

< PMes

KPMG
Auckland

28 June 2021
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Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes 2021 2020
$000's $000's
Interest income 2 4,864 5279
Interest expense 2 (1,523) (1,986)
" Net interest income 3,341 3,293
Other income 3 1,132 1,144
Total operating income 4,473 4,437
Operating expenses 4 (3,000) (3,005)
Impairment loss reversals/(expense) 5 41 (219)
Profit before tax 1,514 1,213
Taxation expense 6 (406) (321)
Profit after tax 1,108 892
Other comprehensive income - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1,108 892

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.



Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Balance at 1 April 2020

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 March 2021
Comparative year to 31 March 2020
Balance at 1 April 2019

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners
Dividend paid

Balance at 31 March 2020

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

Retained
Share capital earnings Total equity
$000's $000's $000's

40,000 8,872 48,872

- 1,108 1,108

40,000 9,980 49,980
40,000 8,103 48,103

- 892 892

- (123) (123)

40,000 8,872 48,872




Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Statement of financlal position
As at 31 March 2021

Notes 2021 2020

$000's $000's

ASSETS

Cash and cash equlvalents 8 20,180 26,123
Balance due from related parties 14 185 107
Due from other financial Institutions 9 - 3,000
Loans and advances 10 125,290 99,779
Property, plant and equipment 12 184 198
Right of use assets 11 1,831 2,131
Deferred tax asset 7 276 259
Other assets 13 275 274
TOTAL ASSETS 148,221 131,871
LIABILITIES

Balance due to related parties 14 857 623
Depaosits and other borrowings 15 94,644 79,575
Lease liabilities 11 1,963 2,213
Current taxation payable 128 55
Other liabilities 16 649 533
TOTAL LIABILITIES 98,241 82,999
EQUITY

Share capital 17 40,000 40,000
Retained earnings 17 9,980 8,872
TOTAL EQUITY 49,980 48,872
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 148,221 131,871
Total interest earning and discount bearing assets 139,571 121,543
Total interest and discount bearing liabilities 85,728 71,050

Financlal assets, pledged as collateral for liabilities - -
or contingent liabilities

The financlal statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on

25 June 2024,
/C/’fvm iCWa_
Chalrmavf’ 4 Managing Director

This statement should be read In conjunction with the notes o the financlal statemants.
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Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash was provided from:

Interest received

Fees and other income

Cash was applied to;
Operating expenses paid
Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities Before
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

Net Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances
Decrease in balances due from other financial
institutions

Increase in deposits and other borrowings
Increase/(Decrease) in balance due to related parties
(Increase) in other assets

(Decrease)/Increase in other liabilities and provisions
(Increase)/Decrease due from related parties

Net Cash Flow (used in} / from Operating Activities
Cash Flows (used in) / from Investing Activities
Cash was applied to:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net Cash Flow (used in)/from Investing Activities

Cash Flows used in Financing Activities

Cash was applied to:

Lease payments made

Payment of dividend

Net Cash Flow (used in)/from Financing Activities

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash at the beginning of the year
Cash at the end of the year

Made up of:
Cash on hand

Call and overnight advances to financial institutions
Cash at the end of the year

This statement should be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

2021 2020

$000's $000's
4,869 5,312
1,132 1,144
6,001 6,456
(2,476) (2,886)
(1,531) (1,968)
(350) (757)
(4,357) (5,609)
1,644 847
(25,495) 599
3,000 8,000
15,069 4,844
234 (676)
(6) (10)
(25) 20
(78) 5,088
(5,657) 18,712
(36) (6)
(36) (6)
(250) (218)
- (123)
(250) (341)
(5,943) 18,365
26,123 7,758
20,180 26,123
167 74
20,013 26,049
20,180 26,123




Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Reconciliation of net profit after taxation to net cash flow from operating activities

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Net profit after taxation

Non cash movements:

Depreciation

(Decrease)/Increase in provision for impairment losses
(Increase)/decrease in deferred taxation assets

Net movement in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances

Decrease in balances due from other financial
institutions

Increase in deposits and other borrowings
(Decrease)/Increase in interest payable

Decrease in interest receivable

Increase/(Decrease) in balances due to related parties
(Increase) in other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities and provisions

(Increase)/Decrease in balances due from related parties

Increase/(Decrease) in current tax liability
Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities

2021 2020
$000's $000's
1,108 892
350 349
(41) 219
(17) (85)
292 483
(25,495) 599
3,000 8,000
15,069 4,844
(8) 20
5 33
234 (676)
6) (10)
149 (210)
(78) 5,088
73 (351)
(5,657) 18,712




Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

1 Statement of accounting policies
The reporting entity is Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited ("the Bank" or "the Company"). The Bank is an
FMC reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 ("FMCA 2013"), registered
under the Companies Act 1993 and is incorporated in New Zealand. These financial statements have been
drawn up in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1993, the Financial Markets Conduct Act
2013, Financial Reporting Act 2013 and the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements (New Zealand Incorporated
Registered Banks) Order 2014 (as amended). They were approved for issue by the Directors on 25 June 2021.
The address of its registered office is 114 Dominion Road, Auckland 1446, New Zealand. The Bank provides its
products and services to retail and business customers. The Bank is a fully owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda
("BOB"), an Indian incorporated bank.

The Bank's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (“NZ GAAP"). They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards ("NZ IFRS") and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards, as appropriate for profit-
oriented entities. These financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The functional and
presentation currency is the New Zealand Dollar (NZD) and the figures have been rounded to the nearest
thousand, unless otherwise stated.

Key estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, the Bank has made significant judgements, estimates and assumptions
that impact on the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses as well as other
information reported in the notes.

The judgements made in the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, and the estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are identified below.

Recognition of expected credit losses (“ECL”) - See note 5
In determining ECL, management is required to exercise judgement in defining what is considered to be a
significant increase in credit risk and default events.

While arriving at ECL, management judgement has been applied based on reasonable and supportable
information of forward-looking economic factors commensurate with the nature of bank’s portfolio of loans,

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, global trade, travel, and business and consumer spending
have been curtailed significantly. Governments internationally have imposed a variety of restraints on people
movement within and across national borders in order to mitigate the virus transmission. There continues to be
a level of uncertainty in this respect. The restriction in movement affects the loan borrowers deriving
predominant income from travel, tourism, hospitality and transport and may have higher credit risk and such
credit exposures continue to be in Stage Two, as defined in Note 1(h). However, the exposure to such loan
exposures have declined by 40% and consequently the provisions to these exposures have declined by 39%.

In response to the COVID-19 situation the government and the regulators announced fiscal and monetary
packages. The Reserve Bank of New Zealand announced a significant reduction in the Official Cash Rate and
a Large-Scale Asset Purchase Programme. The government also provided a wage subsidy scheme, income
support package and tax package which supported individuals and businesses. Although the outlook stili
remains uncertain, these measures have mitigated the economic impact of COVID-19. The Bank offered
various forms of assistance to 17 customers whose incomes have been affected by the economic disruption
from COVID-19 in 2020-21. Such loan deferral, by itself, would not automatically result in a significant
increase in credit risk warranting movement to Stage Two. In the case of loan deferral packages, all
customers who took advantage of a deferral package have reverted back to loan repayments. Note 5
provides details of the impact of this on the provision for expected credit losses at 31 March 2021.



Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Recognition of expected credit losses (“ECL”) - (continued)

In determining the provision for expected credit losses as at 31 March 2021, due to the lack of historical
default experience, publicly available information was considered while applying default estimates which were
also factored for negative outlook on macro-economic factors.

The probability of default, loss given default, and exposure at default assumptions which support the expected
credit loss estimate are reviewed regularly in light of differences between loss estimates and actual loss
experience.

Specific accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

There were no changes in accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements
since those applied in the 31 March 2020 financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recagnised in the profit or
loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefit will flow to the Bank and that
the revenue can be reliably measured. The principal sources of revenue are interest income, fees and
commissions.

Interest income and expense
Financial instruments are classified in the manner described in the financial assets and liabilities sections
below.

For financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income and expense is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Banking and lending fees .

Fees and direct costs relating to loan origination, financing or restructuring and to loan commitments are
deferred and amortised to interest income over the life of the loan using the effective interest method.
Lending fees not directly related to the origination of a loan are recognised over the period of service.

Commissions revenue

When commissions or similar fees are related to specific non-lending transactions or events, they are
recognised in the profit or loss when the service is provided to the customer. When they are charged for
service provided over a period, they are taken to other income on an accrual basis as the service is
provided. ‘

Net foreign exchange gains
Net foreign exchange gains represent the net amount of foreign exchange gains and losses recognised
during the period.



Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

(d)

(e)

(9)

(h)

Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, based on both the
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets.

A financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost only if both the following conditions are met:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest.

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets were recognised on the trade-date - the date on which the
Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when an obligation arises and derecognised when it is discharged,
cancelled or expired. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs, except
where they are designated at fair value, in which case transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

The Bank's financial liabilities include balances due to related parties, deposit and other borrowings, and
other liabilities. Deposits from customers cover all forms of funding, and include transactional and savings
accounts, term deposits and credit balances on cards. Other liabilities include the accrual of interest
coupons and fees payable.

The Bank classified its financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, as it has no held for
trading or derivative financial liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In both the current and preceding period, the Bank has not entered into any derivative financial instruments
and does not apply hedge accounting to any transactions.

Offsetting financial instruments

The Bank offsets financial assets and financial liabilities and reports the net balance in the balance sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to set-off and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank applies a three stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECL) on debt instruments
accounted for at amortised cost. Such assets may move through the following three stages based on their
change in credit quality since their initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-months ECL (Stage 1)

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability
of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.
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Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

(h) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired (Stage 2)

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, but
that are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit
losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired (Stage 3)

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial assets that have become
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

Assessment of significant increases in credit risk

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there has been significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between that of the
reporting date to that of the date of initial recognition.

The Bank assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly on an individual
and collective basis. For the purposes of collective evaluation, financial assets are grouped on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account instrument type, internal credit risk rating, date of initial
recognition, remaining term to maturity, industry, geographical location of the borrower and other relevant
factors.

Regardless of other changes since the origination of the financial asset, it will be considered to have had a
significant increase in credit risk where it is more than 30 days past due.

Subsequent improvement in credit quality

If, in a subsequent reporting period, the credit quality improves and reverses any previously assessed
significant increase in credit risk since origination, then the provision for credit losses reverts from full
lifetime ECL to 12-months ECL.

Measurement of expected credit losses

The estimated amount of ECL is measured as the probability-weighted present value of all cash shortfalls
over the expected life of the financial asset discounted at its original effective interest rate. The cash
shortfall is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Bank and all the cash flows
that the Bank expects to receive. The amount of the loss is recognised using a provision for credit loss
allowance.

The Bank considers its historical loss experience and adjusts this for current observable data. In addition,
the Bank uses reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions including experienced
judgement to estimate the amount of an expected impairment loss. The Bank assesses a range of
macroeconomic factors which include, but are not limited to, unemployment, interest rates, gross domestic
product, inflation and property prices, and requires an evaluation of both the current and forecast direction
of the economic cycle. Incorporating forward-looking information increases the level of judgement as to how
changes in these macroeconomic factors will affect ECL. The methodology and assumptions, including any
forecasts of future economic conditions are reviewed regularly.

Collective assessment of credit loss allowances
For collectively assessed provisions, expected credit losses are estimated based on the probability of
default, loss given default, and the anticipated exposure at default.

The probability of default (“PD")
This estimates the likelihood of default occurring (either over the lifetime of the financial instrument, or
within 12 months from reporting period).



Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

(h) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Exposure at default (‘EAD’)
An estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the
exposure after reporting date — for instance due to available borrowing facilities.

Loss given default (“LGD")

This is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Banks would expect to receive,
including cash flows expected from collateral and other credit enhancements.

For credit-impaired financial assets that are assessed on an individual basis, a discounted cash flow
calculation will be performed and consider multiple cash flow scenarios. However, no loans have been
recognised in this category since adoption of NZ IFRS 9.

Allowance is also made for the expected credit losses arising from undrawn loan commitments available to
borrowers, which is recognised within other liabilities.

Default

In defining default for the purposes of determining the risk of a default occurring, the Bank applies a default
definition consistent with the definition used for internal credit risk management purposes for the relevant
financial instrument and considers qualitative indicators when appropriate. The Bank applies a presumption
that default does not occur later than when a financial asset is 90 days past due, or where it operates
outside of agreed facility limits for a period of more than 90 days.

Write-off of financial assets

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowances) will be written off, either partially or in full, when
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where loans are secured, this is generally after receipt of any
proceeds from the realisation of security. No loans have been written off during the current reporting period.

Purchased or originated credit impaired assets
The Bank has no purchased or originated credit impaired assets during the current reporting period.

(i) Asset quality disclosures

Restructured assets

A restructured asset is any credit exposure for which:

« the original terms have been changed to grant the counterparty a concession that would not otherwise
have been available, due to the counterparty's difficulties in complying with the original terms;

+ the revised terms of the facility are not comparable with the terms of new facilities with comparable risks;
and

« the yield on the asset following restructuring is equal to or greater than, the Bank's average cost of funds,
or that a loss is not otherwise expected to be incurred.

Assets acquired through the enforcement of security are those real estate and other assets acquired in full
or partial satisfaction of a debt.

Past due assets
A financial asset is disclosed as a past due asset where a counterparty has failed to make a payment when
contractually due, and which is not an impaired asset.

Assets under administration

An asset under administration is any credit exposure which is not an impaired asset or a past due asset, but
which is to a counterparty:

« wha is in receivership, liquidation, bankruptcy, statutory management or any form of administration in New
Zealand; or

+ who is in any other equivalent form of voluntary or involuntary administration in an overseas jurisdiction.

, @



Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

)]

(k)

m

{(m)

Taxation
Income tax on the net profit for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted as at balance date after taking advantage of all allowable deductions under current
taxation legislation and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous financial years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at balance date.

A deferred taxation asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable (i.e. more likely than not) that a
future taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilised.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when: the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liabilities and credit commitments

The Bank is involved in a range of transactions that give rise to contingent and/or future liabilities. The Bank
discloses a contingent liability when it has possible obligation arising from past events that will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Bank's
control. A contingent liability is disclosed when a present obligation is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle an obligation, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Bank issues commitments to extend credit, letters of credit, guarantees and other credit facilities.
These financial instruments attract fees in line with market prices for similar arrangements. They are not
sold or traded. The items generally do not involve cash payments other than in the event of default. The fee
pricing is set as part of the broader customer credit process and reflects the probability of default. They are
disclosed as contingent liabilities at their face value. The fair values of guarantees are not considered to be
material.

Leases

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments over the lease term:
-fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

- variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate to the extent that the variable amount is
known.

Variable lease payments that are not based on an index or rate are excluded from lease liabilities, and
recognised when they become due. There are no residual value guarantees, purchase options or
termination penalties relevant to the company's lease obligations.

Extension options, exercisable by the Bank, are included in a number of property leases. Where itis
considered reasonably certain these will be exercised they are included within the lease term, which is the
case for all such options in the current reporting period. Management considers all facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option. The assessment will be reviewed if a
significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this assessment and that is
within the control of the Bank.

The lease payments, over the lease term, are discounted using an estimate of the Bank’s incremental
borrowing rate for an equivalent asset.

Right-of-use assets arising from lease arrangements are measured at cost comprising the following:
-the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; and
- any restoration costs (such as make good provisions).
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(m) Leases (continued)

(n)

(o)

{2)]

When lease payments are made these reduce the related lease liability; a finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life
and the lease term, on a straight-line basis.

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the
Bank's shareholders. Dividends for the year that are declared after the balance date are dealt with in the
subsequent events note.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash, cash at bank, cash in transit and call deposits due from/to other
banks, all of which are used in the day-to-day cash management of the Bank.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The financial statements have been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive of GST except
where the GST is not recoverable from the IRD. In these circumstances the GST component is recognised
as part of the underlying item. Trade and other receivables and payables are stated GST inclusive. The net
amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the IRD is included within these categories. Cash flows in
the statement of cash flows include GST.

2 Interest 2021 2020
$000's $000's
Interest income
Bank deposits/placements 68 308
Loans and advances to customers 4,796 4,971
Total interest income 4,864 5279
Interest expense
Deposits by customers 1,523 1,986
Total interest expense 1,623 1,986
3 Otherincome . 2021 2020
$000's $000's
Banking and lending fee income 251 201
Commissions revenue 23 46
Net foreign exchange gains 854 891
Other revenue 4 6
Total other income 1,132 1,144
4 Operating expenses 2021 2020
$000's $000's
Audit and review of Disclosure Statement:
« Audit of Disclosure Statement - KPMG 98 72
+ Audit of Disclosure Statement - 2020 (additional fee - KPMG) 20 -
» Half year review of Disclosure Statement - KPMG 27 30
+ Audit and review of Disclosure Statement - Deloitte - 10
Directors' fees 47 44
Depreciation:
« Computer hardware 11 1
+ Office equipment 5 7
« Furniture, fittings, and leasehold improvements 34 41
* Right of use to leased assets 300 300
Employee benefits:
* Salary & others 1,757 1,724
» Kiwisaver 14 16
Rental and lease costs not included in lease liabilities 44 34
Other operating expenses 643 726
Total operating expenses 3,000 3,005
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5 Creditloss allowances

Retail mortgage  Corporate and Other
lending institutional exposures Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
For year ended 31 March 2021
Collective allowance
Balance at the beginning of the year 167 338 3 508
Charge/(Credit) to profit or loss 16 (62) 5 (41)
Total collective allowance for 183 276 8 467
credit losses at 31 March 2021
Recognised in:
Loans and advances - collective provision 174 230 6 410
Other liabilities - undrawn commitments 9 46 2 57
Total collective allowance for 183 276 8 467
credit losses at 31 March 2021
For year ended 31 March 2021
Collective provision
lifetime ECL -  Specific provision
Movement in provision for credit  collective provision significant increase lifetime ECL - credit
loss allowance 12-months ECL in credit risk impaired Total
Residential mortgage lending
Balance at beginning of year 118 49 - 167
Charge/(Credit) to profit or loss 36 (20) - 16
Balance at end of period - 154 29 - 183
Residential mortgage lending
Corporate exposures
Balance at beginning of year 293 45 - 338
Credit to profit or loss (46) (16) - (62)
Balance at end of period - 247 29 - 276
Corporate exposures
Other exposures
Balance at beginning of year 3 - - 3
Charge to profit or loss - 5 - 5
Balance at end of period - Other 3 5 - 8
exposures
Provision for credit loss
allowances - Total
Balance at beginning of year 414 94 - 508
Credit to profit or loss (10) (31) - (41)
Total provision for credit loss 404 63 - 467

allowances balance at end of
year

Impact of changes in gross carrying amount on ECL

Overall, the net decrease in the total provision for credit impairment of $41,000 during the year was mainly driven
by a change in profile of the Bank's loans, as the proportion of residential mortgage lending increased from 62%
to 73% and the proportion of other loans (including development loans) decreased from 38% to 27% during this
period. Further the exposure to Stage 2 loans have declined by 40% and consequently the provisions to these

exposures have declined by 39%.
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5 Credit loss allowances (continued)

For year ended 31 March 2020
Collective allowance

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge to profit or loss

Total collective allowance for
credit losses at 31 March 2020

Recognised in
Loans and advances - collective provision
Other liabilities - undrawn commitments

Total collective allowance for
credit losses at 31 March 2020

For year ended 31 March 2020

Movement in provision for credit
loss allowance

Residential mortgage lending
Balance at beginning of period
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss

Balance at end of period -
Residential mortgage lending

Corporate exposures
Balance at beginning of period
Charge/{credit) to profit or loss

Balance at end of period -
Corporate exposures

Other exposures
Balance at beginning of period
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss

Balance at end of period - Other
exposures

Provision for credit loss
allowances - Total

Balance at beginning of period
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss

Retail mortgage  Corporate and Other
lending institutional exposures Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
70 216 3 289
97 122 - 219
167 338 3 508
155 270 1 426
12 68 2 82
167 338 3 508
Collective
provision lifetime Specific
Collective ECL - significant provision
provision 12- increase in credit lifetime ECL -
months ECL risk credit impaired Total
70 - - 70
48 49 - 97
118 49 - 167
216 - - 216
77 45 - 122
293 45 - 338
3 - - 3
3 - - 3
289 - - 289
125 94 - 219
414 94 - 508

Total provision for credit loss
allowances balance at end of
year
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6 Taxation

Net profit before taxation
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 28%

Re-estimation of prior period current tax liability

Other permanent differences

Taxation expense as per the statement of comprehensive income

Represented by:
Current tax - current year
Current tax - prior year
Deferred tax

Taxation expense as per the statement of comprehensive income

Imputation credits available for use in subsequent periods

7 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax balances

Balance at the beginning of the year

Credit to statement of comprehensive income
Balance at end of the year

Movement in composition of
balance - 2021 year

Property, plant and equipment
Provisions

Leases

Balance

Movement in composition of
balance - 2020 year

Property, plant and equipment
Provisions

Leases

Balance

Opening balance
as at1 Apr 2020

2021 2020
$000's $000's
1,614 1,213
(424) (340)
21 39

(3) (20)
(406) (321)
(444) (445)
21 39

17 85
(406) (321)
2021 2020
$000's $000's
1,237 814
2021 2020
$000's $000's
259 174

17 85

276 259

Recognised in the
profit and loss

Closing balance
as at 31 Mar 2021

$000's $000's $000's
42 - 42
194 3 197
23 14 37
259 17 276

Opening balance
as at 1 Apr 2019

Recognised in the
profit and loss

Closing balance
as at 31 Mar 2020

$000's $000's $000's
46 (4) 42
128 66 194
- 23 23
174 62 259

Deferred tax accounts for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their values for taxation purposes.
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8

10

11

Cash and cash equivalents 2021 2020
$000's $000's
Cash on hand 167 74
Call and overnight advances to financial institutions 20,013 26,049
Total cash and cash equivalents 20,180 26,123
Current 20,180 26,123
Non-current -
Due from other financial institutions 2021 2020
$000's $000's
Term deposits - 3,000
Total amount due from other financial institutions - 3,000
Current - 3,000
Non-current - -
Loans and advances 2021 2020
$000's $000's
Residential mortgage loans 97,411 67,546
Corporate exposures 26,211 30,681
Other exposures 2,078 1,978
Allowances for impairment losses (410) (426)
Total net loans and advances 125,290 99,779
Current 16,679 15,672
Non-current 108,611 84,207
Leases

Nature and extent of lease activities

The Bank leases three properties for operational purposes as its branches. These leases contain a variety of
lease terms which typically include rent review (fixed, market and/or CPl) and extension options. Further variable
costs due under the lease agreements and expensed in the current period amounted to $44,000 (2020:
$34,000).

In addition, there are lease costs recognised on a straight-line basis in relation to short-term leases of residential
properties, provided as accommodation to certain Bank staff members. Costs amounting to $196,000 (2020:
$193,000) were expensed during the period. These have been disclosed as employee benefits within note 4.
Total cash outflows related to leases during the period under review amounted to $630,000 (2020: $600,000).

Right of use to leased assets

The following amounts are included in the balance sheet in relation to right of use assets held under lease
arrangements:

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Right of use assets $000's $000's
Properties - cost 2,431 2,431
Properties - accumulated depreciation (600) (300)
Right of use assets 1,831 2,131
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11 Leases (continued)

For the year For the year

ended ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2020

Right of use assets $000's $000's
Balance at 1 April 2020 2,131 2,431
Depreciation charge for the period (300) (300)
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,831 2,131

There were no additions during the period to leased properties nor modifications to existing lease agreements.

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Liabilities for leases $000's $000's
The following amounts are included as lease liabilities:

Due within one year 268 250

Due after one year 1,695 1,963

1,963 2,213

The Bank is not exposed to significant liquidity risk as a result of the lease liabilities, which are payable monthly
and managed in accordance with the Bank's overall liquidity management.

Maturity profile for lease liabilities
The following undiscounted amounts are due under the Bank's lease arrangements during the assumed lease
term:

Between More
Upto3 3to12 1&5 than 5
months  months years years Total

$000's $000's  $000's $000's $000's

Lease payments included within lease liabilities
At 31 March 2021 98 293 1,319 779 2,489

At 31 March 2020 97 293 1,618 971 2,879

Lease commitments where no liability is recognised
In the current period no lease liability has been recognised in relation to short-term leases of less than 12
months duration. Payments were due under such leases as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
$000's $000's

Short-term leases
Payments due not later than 1 year 35 43
Total 35 43
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12 Property, plant and equipment

For the year ended 31 March
2021

At 1 April 2020

Opening cost

Opening accumulated depreciation

Opening net book value
Additions during the 2021 year
Depreciation

Closing net book value

At 31 March 2021

Closing cost

Closing accumulated depreciation
Closing net book value

For the year ended 31 March
2020

At 1 April 2019

Opening cost

Opening accumulated depreciation

Opening net book value
Additions during the 2020 year
Depreciation

Closing net book value

At 31 March 2020

Closing cost

Closing accumulated depreciation
Closing net book value

13 Other assets

Other receivables

Interest receivable

Trade and other receivables
Current

Non-current

Furniture,
fittings &
Computer leasehold
hardware Office equipment improvements Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
199 170 1,108 1,477
(197) (153) (929) (1,279)
2 17 179 198
34 - 2 36
a1 5) (34) (50)
25 12 147 184
233 170 1,110 1,513
(208) (158) (963) (1,329)
25 12 147 184
Furniture,
fittings &
Computer leasehold
hardware Office equipment improvements Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
198 170 1,103 1,471
(196) (146) (888) (1,230)
2 24 2156 241
1 - 5 6
W @) (41 (49)
2 17 179 198
199 170 1,108 1,477
(197) (153) (929) (1,279)
2 17 179 198
2021 2020
$000's $000's
100 94
175 180
275 274
275 274
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14 Related party disclosures

The Bank is wholly owned by the Bank of Baroda, a bank incorporated in India. No related party debts have
been written off or forgiven during the year.

Key management personnel
Key management personnel (KMP) are defined as being the directors and senior management of the Bank.

2021 2020
$000's $000's
Salaries and other short-term benefits 1,256 1,124
Total key management compensation 1,256 1,124
Deposits from KMP bearing interest at 1.25% to 2% (2020: 1.25% to 2%) 85 186
Loans to KMP at interest rates of 3.8% (2020:2.29% to 2.70%) 508 1
Interest earned from loans with KMP 6 -
Interest paid to KMP during the year 1 1

Guarantee from Parent

The Bank's ultimate parent is Bank of Baroda, an Indian incorporated bank (BOB). BOB is subject to regulatory
oversight by the Reserve Bank of India and the Government of India. BOB is not a New Zealand registered bank
and is not subject to regulatory oversight by the Reserve Bank of New Zealand.

The obligations of the Bank are guaranteed by BOB. There are no legislative, regulatory or restrictions of a
legally enforceable nature in India (BOB's country of incorporation) that may materially inhibit the legal ability of
BOB to provide material financial support to the Bank. As at 31 March 2021, all the obligations of the Bank are
guaranteed by BOB.

Related party transactions and balances:
Related parties include branches of Bank of Baroda, its subsidiaries and other related parties.

The Bank holds foreign currency Nostro current accounts deposits of NZ$184,887 (31 March 2020:
NZ$1086,737) with other members of BOB group and other related parties, these accounts are non-interest

bearing:

USA New York branch (USD) 132 73
India Mumbai main office (INR) - -
U.K London branch (GBP) 6 9
Belgium Brussels branch (EURO) 7 10
Fiji Suva branch (FJD) _ 5 2
Australia Sydney branch (AUD) 35 13
Total Nostro balances 185 107

The Bank also has current account balances owing to its parent company, Bank of Baroda of NZ$851,523 (31
March 2020: NZ$621,994) and Bank of Baroda (Fiji) of NZ$5,180 (31 March 2020: NZ$1,326) that are non-
interest bearing.

2021 2020
$000's $000's
Transaction with related parties:

Interest income

Bank of Baroda branches and its subsidiaries - 65
Other related parties - -
Interest expense '

Bank of Baroda branches and its subsidiaries - -
Other related parties - -
Support & service fee/management fee

Bank of Baroda 38 95
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14 Related party disclosures (continued)
Due to related parties:

Bank of Baroda

Total due to related parties
Current

Non-current

Total

Due from related parties:

Bank of Baroda branches
Subsidiaries of Bank of Baroda
Total due from related parties
Current

Non-current

Total

2021 2020
$000's $000's
857 623
857 623
857 623
857 623
185 107
185 107
185 107
185 107

During the course of the year ended 31 March 2021, the Bank entered into foreign currency transactions to buy

and sell INR, USD, GBP, EUR, AUD and FJD with its parent company, Bank of Baroda, and the resulting

balances from these transactions are included in the balance due to related parties of the face of the statement

of financial position.

15 Deposits and other borrowings

Retail deposits
Total deposits

New Zealand
Overseas

Current
Non-current

16 Other liabilities
Employee entitlements
Other payables and accruals

Credit loss allowance on undrawn lending commitments
Total other liabilities

Current
17 Equity
Share capital

Retained earnings
Total equity

2021 2020
$000's $000's
94,644 79,575
94,644 79,575
94,644 79,575
86,114 71,915

8,530 7,660

2021 2020
$000's $000's

182 126
410 325
57 82
649 533
649 533

2021 2020
$000's $000's
40,000 40,000

9,980 8,872
49,980 48,872

40,000,000 shares (2020: 40,000,000) have been issued with equal voting rights and share equally in dividends
and any profits on winding up. Shares have a par value of one NZD each. There have been no issues or other

changes in share capital in the current or previous year.

No dividends were paid during the year ended 31 March 2021. A dividend was paid of $123,392 (0.31 cents

per share, imputed at 28%) in May 2019,
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18 Asset quality

Other
As at 31 March 2021 exposures
excluding
Residential Corporate sovereigns and
mortgage loans exposures  central banks Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
Loans and advances
No significant increase in credit risk
Not past due 94,672 26,195 2,078 122,945
Less than 30 days past due 2,739 16 - 2,755
Gross loans and advances 97,411 26,211 2,078 125,700
Less allowance for impairment (174) (230) (6) (410)
Net loans and advances 97,237 25,981 2,072 125,290
Other assets neither past due nor
impaired - - 20,640 20,640
Total net financial assets 97,237 25,981 22,712 145,930
Movements in gross balances - by credit loss
allowance stage Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
Balance at 1 April 2020 93,471 6,734 100,205
Loans repaid in their entirety (32,838) (1,908) (34,746)
New loans originated 57,921 198 58,119
Net further lending/(repayment) 2,934 (812) 2,122
Transfers between loss allowance stages - - -
Balance at end of period 121,488 4,212 125,700

At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 there were no loans in Stage 3.

The Bank does not have any modified or restructured assets, and financial, real estate or other assets acquired

through security enforcement or any other assets under administration as at 31 March 2021 (2020: nil).

There has been no interest revenue foregone on restructured, individually impaired or greater than 90 days past

due assets during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil).

There were no undrawn balances on lending commitments to counterparties within the impaired asset category

as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: None).
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18 Asset quality (continued)

As at 31 March 2020

Other
exposures
excluding

Residential Corporate sovereigns and
mortgage loans exposures  central banks Total
$000's $000's $000's $000's
Loans and advances
No significant increase in credit risk
Not past due 58,479 30,503 1,978 90,960
Less than 30 days past due 9,067 178 - 9,245
Gross loans and advances 67,546 30,681 1,978 100,205
Less allowance for impairment (155) (270) (1) (426)
Net loans and advances 67,391 30,411 1,977 99,779
Other assets neither past due nor
impaired - - 29,504 29,504
Total net financial assets 67,391 30,411 31,481 129,283
Movements in gross balances - by credit loss
allowance stage Stage 1 Stage 2 Total
Balance at 1 April 2019 100,804 - 100,804
Loans repaid in their entirety (23,986) - (23,986)
New loans originated 28,038 - 28,038
Net further lending/(repayment) (4,651) - (4,651)
Transfers between loss allowance stages (6,734) 6,734 -
Balance at end of period 93,471 6,734 100,205
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19 Concentration of credit risk

The following table breaks down the Bank's main credit exposure at their carrying amounts plus off balance
sheet exposures, as categorised by the industry sectors of its counterparties. For further details on how credit
risk is managed and is set out in note 32.1.

2021 2020

$000's $000's
New Zealand
Finance 20,180 29,123
Households 105,577 74,398
Electricity, gas and water - 164
Construction 16,898 20,881
Property services 3,869 6,095
Health and community services 973 1,076
Personal and other services 8,960 12,078
Retail and wholesale trade 3,459 1,411
Food and other manufacturing 751 833
Other financial assets 275 274
Overseas
Finance, investment and insurance 185 107
Total financial assets 161,127 146,430
Allowance for impairment losses (410) (426)
Total net financial assets 160,717 146,004
Analysis of financial assets by geographical sector at balance date is as follows:

2021 2020

$000's $000's
New Zealand
Upper North Island 143,043 130,483
Lower North Island 17,899 15,840
Allowance for impairment losses (410) (426)
Overseas
USA New York branch (USD) 132 73
U.K London branch (GBP) 6 9
Belgium Brussels branch (EURO) 7 10
Fiji Suva branch (FJD) 5 2
Australia Sydney branch (AUD) 35 13
India - International Banking Unit Branch (USD) - -
Total net financial assets 160,717 146,004

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements at balance date is as
follows:

2021 2020
$000's $000's

Loans and advances (including undrawn commitments available to
customers, refer to note 22) 140,487 116,926
Balances with related parties 185 107
Due from other financial institutions - 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents 20,180 26,123
Other financial assets 275 274
Total gross financial assets 161,127 146,430
Allowance for impairment losses (410) (426)
Total net financial assets 160,717 146,004
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20 Concentration of funding

21

22

Concentrations of funding arise where the Bank is funded by industries of a similar nature or in particular

geographies. An analysis of financial liabilities by industry sector and geography at balance date is as follows:

2021 2020
$000's $000's
New Zealand
Financing investment and insurance 7,391 2,258
Retail and wholesale trade 2,265 2,865
Other 649 533
Households 84,988 74,452
Overseas
Finance, investment and insurance 857 623
Total financial liabilities 96,150 80,731

An analysis of financial liabilities by geographical sector, based on the branch of the customer, at balance date is

as follows:
2021 2020
$000's $000's
New Zealand
Upper North Island 77,155 63,724
Lower North Island 18,138 16,384
South Island - -
Overseas 857 623
Total financial liabilities 96,150 80,731
Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2021, there are no material outstanding commitments (31 March 2020: nil).
Contingent liabilities 2021 2020
$000's $000's
Performanceffinancial guarantees issued on behalf of customers 271 40
Total contingent liabilities 271 40
Undrawn commitments available to customers 14,787 16,681
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23 Subsequent events after balance sheet date

There have be no material events subsequent to balance date.

24 Interest rate repricing

The tables below summarise the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk. It includes the financial instruments at
carrying amounts, financial guarantees and undrawn amounts, categorised by contractual re-pricing. For further
details on how interest rate risk is managed, refer to note 32.2.

As at 31 March 2021

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other financial institutions

Loans and advances
Balances with related parties
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits and other borrowings

Due to related parties
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

On-balance sheet gap
Financial guarantee
Undrawn commitments

Net effective interest rate gap

Over 3 Over 6

Not months & months & Over1& Over2&

interest Upto3 upto6 wupto1l wupto2 uptos Over §

Total bearing months  months year years years years
$000's  $000's $000's $000's $000's  $000's $000's $000's
20,180 6,308 13,872 - - - - -
125,290 - 52,481 9,559 50,787 12,463 - -
185 185 - - - - - -
275 275 - - - - - -
145,930 6,768 66,353 9,559 50,787 12,463 - -
94,644 8,916 45,983 13,530 17,685 4,122 4,408 -
857 857 - - - - - -
649 649 - - - - - -
96,150 10,422 45,983 13,630 17,685 4,122 4,408 -
49,780  (3,654) 20,370  (3,971) 33,102 8,341  (4,408) -
271 271 - - - - - -
14,787 - 7,404 405 5,274 1,704 - -
64,838  (3,383) 27,774  (3,566) 38,376 10,045  (4,408) -
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24 Interest rate repricing (continued)

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other financial institutions
Loans and advances

Balances with related parties
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits and other borrowings
Due to related parties

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

On-balance sheet gap
Financial guarantee
Undrawn commitments

Net effective interest rate gap

25 Financial instruments by category

As at 31 March 2021

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other financial institutions
Loans and advances

Balances with related parties
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

As at 31 March 2021
Financial liabilities

Deposits and other borrowings
Due to related parties

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Over 3 Over 6
Not months & months & Over1& Over2&

interest Upto3 uptoé uptot upto2 upto5 Over §
Total bearing months  months year years years years
$000's  $000's $000's $000's $000's  $000's $000's $000's
26,123 7,785 18,338 - - - - -
3,000 - 3,000 - - - - -
99,779 - 40,828 15,271 23,786 19,894 - -
107 107 - - - - - -
274 274 - - - - - -
129,283 8,166 62,166 15,271 23,786 19,894 - -
79,675 10,738 38,891 8,852 13,435 5,290 2,369 -
623 623 - - - - - -
533 533 - - - - - -
80,731 11,894 38,891 8,852 13,435 5,290 2,369 -
48,5652  (3,729) 23,275 6,419 10,351 14,604  (2,369) -
40 40 - - - - - -
16,681 - 10,508 2,518 1,502 2,153 - -
65,273  (3,689) 33,783 8,937 11,863 16,757  (2,369) -
Amortised cost Total
$000's $000's

20,180 20,180

125,290 125,290

185 185

275 275

145,930 145,930
Amortised cost Total
$000's $000's

94,644 94,644

857 857

649 649

96,150 96,150
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25 Financial instruments by category (continued)

Amortised cost Total
As at 31 March 2020 $000's $000's
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 26,123 26,123
Due from other financial institutions 3,000 3,000
Loans and advances 99,779 99,779
Balances with related parties 107 107
Other financial assets 297 297
Total financial assets 129,306 129,306

Amortised cost Total
As at 31 March 2020 $000's $000's
Financial liabilities
Deposits and other borrowings 79,575 79,575
Due to related parties 623 623
Other financial liabilities 533 533
Total financial liabilities 80,731 80,731

26 Foreign exchange risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows. The board sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in aggregate for
overnight positions, which are monitored daily. The table below summarises the Bank's exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk as at year end. Included in the table are the Bank's financial instruments at carrying
amounts, categorised by currency. This note is denominated in New Zealand Dollars.

As at 31 March 2021 FJD GBP EUR INR USD AUD Total
$000's  $000's $000's $000's $000's $000's  $000's

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 5515 - 5,615
Due from other financial institutions
Loans and advances

1
'
'
v

Balances with related parties 5 6 7 - 132 35 185
Other financial assets - - - - - - -
Total financial assets 5 6 7 - 5,647 35 5,700
Financial liabilities

Due to other financial institutions - - - - - - -
Deposits and other borrowings - - - - 5191 - 5,191
Other financial liabilities - - - - - - -
Due to related parties - - - 44 - - 44
Total financial liabilities - - - 4 5191 - 5,235
Net on statement of financial 5 6 7 (44) 456 35 465
position
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26 Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other financial institutions
Loans and advances

Balances with related parties
Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits and other borrowings
Other financial liabilities

Due to related parties

Total financial liabilities

Net on statement of financial
position

27 Liquidity risk

FJD GBP EUR INR USD AUD  Total
$000's  $000's $000's $000's $000's $000's  $000's
- . - 6,286 - 6,286

2 9 10 - 73 13 107

2 9 10 - 6,359 13 6,393

- - - - 5832 - 5832

- - - 1 - - 1

- - : 1 5,832 - 5833

2 9 10 1y 527 13 560

The Bank's policies for managing liquidity are set out in note 32.3. The tables below summarises the
undiscounted cash flows payable or receivable by the Bank under non-derivative financial assets and liabilities
by remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date.

As at 31 March 2021

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other financial institutions
Loans and advances

Due from related parties

Other financlal assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits and other borrowings
Due to related parties

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Net non-derivative cash flows

Derivative cash flows
Interest rate derivatives
Foreign exchange derivatives
Total

Off balance sheet cash flows

Financial guarantees provided to customers
Undrawn commitments to lend

Total

Net cash flow

Between More

On Upto3 3to12 185 than 5
Demand months months years years Total
$000's $000's $000's  $000's $000's $000's
20,180 - - - - 20,180
- 5,449 9,698 26,651 138,376 178,075
188 - - - - 185
- 275 - - - 275
20,365 5,724 9,699 26,651 136,376 198,715
44,238 10,491 31,847 8,077 - 95,653
857 - - - - 857
- 649 - - - 649
45,095 11,140 31,847 9,077 - 97,169
(24,730) (5,416) (22,248) 17,574 136,376 101,556
(271) - - - - 271)
(14,787) - - - - (14,787)
(15,058) - - - - (15,058)
{39,788) (5,416) (22,248) 17,574 136,376 86,498




Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

27 Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from other financial institutions
Loans and advances

Due from related parties

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits and other borrowings
Due to related parties

Other financial liabllities

Total financial liabilities

Net non-derivative cash flows

Derivative cash flows
Interest rate derivatives
Foreign exchange derivatives
Total

Off balance sheet cash flows

Financial guarantees provided to customers
Undrawn commitments {o lend

Total

Net cash flow

The bank holds following liquid assets for the purpose of managing liquidity risk:

Cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with financial institutions
Deposit/cash held with related parties
Total liquid assets

Between More
On Upto3 3to 12 1&5 than 5

Demand months months years years Total
$000's $000's $000's  $000's $000's $000's
26,123 - - - - 26,123
- 3,014 - - - 3,014

1,199 3,028 18,381 34,290 99,902 156,800
107 - - - - 107

- 274 - - - 274
27,429 6,316 18,381 34,290 99,902 186,318
41,286 8,529 22,767 8,383 - 80,965
623 - - - - 623

- 533 - - - 533
41,909 9,062 22,767 8,383 - 82,121
(14,480) (2,746)  (4,386) 25,907 99,902 104,197
(40) - - - - (40)
(16,681) - - - - (16,681)
(16,721) - - - - {16,721)
(31,201) (2,748) (4,386) 25,907 99,902 87,476
2021 2020

$000's $000's

20,180 26,123

- 3,000

185 107

20,365 29,230

62
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28 Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarise the post-tax sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities to changes in interest rate
and currency risks. The carrying value of the assets and liabilities were used as the basis for the analysis and
financial modelling was used to determine the impact on those values of changes in each risk scenario. The
sensitivity analysis is performed based on the reporting of interest risk and foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

Carrying -0.5% +0.5% -0.5% +0.5%
As at 31 March 2021 amounts profit profit equity equity
$000's $000's $000's $000's  $000's
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 20,180 (66) 66 (66) 66
Balances with related parties 185 - - - -
Loans and advances 125,290 (341) 341 (341) 341
Other financial asset 275 - - - -
Total financial assets 145,930 (407) 407  (407) 407
Financial liabilities

Due to related parties 857 - - - -
Deposits and other borrowings 94,644 280 (280) 280 (280)
Other financial liabilities 649 - - - -
Total financial liabilities 96,150 280 (280) 280 (280)

Interest rate risk

Carrying -0.5% +0.5% -0.5% +0.5%
As at 31 March 2020 amounts profit profit equity equity
$000's $000's $000's $000's  $000's

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 26,123 (88) 88 (88) 88
Balances with related parties 107 - - - -
Due from other financial institutions 3,000 (14) 14 (14) 14
Loans and advances 99,779 (273) 273 (273) 273
Other financial asset 274 - - - -
Total financial assets 129,283 (375) 3756  (375) 375
Financial liabilities

Due to related parties 623 - - - -
Deposits and other borrowings 79,575 227  (227) 227 (227)
Other financial liabilities 533 - - - -
Total financial liabilities 80,731 227  (227) 227 (227)
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28 Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Currency risk

As at 31 March 2021

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with related parties
Loans and advances

Other financial asset

Total financial assets

Due to related parties
Deposits and other liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Currency risk

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with related parties

Due from other financial institutions
Loans and advances

Other financial asset

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Due to related parties
Deposits and other liabilities
“Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Carrying -10% +10% -10% +10%
amounts profit profit equity equity
$000's $000's $000's $000's  $000's
20,180 (552) 552  (552) 552
185  (19) 19 (19) 19
125,290 - - - -
275 - - - -
145,930 (571) 5§71 (571) 571
857 4 4) 4 4)
94,644 519 (519) 519 (519)
649 - - - -
96,150 523 (523) 523 (523)
Carrying -10% +10% -10% +10%
amounts profit profit equity equity
$000's $000's $000's $000's  $000's
26,123 (629) 629 (629) 629
107 (12) 12 (12) 12
3,000 - - - -
99,779 - - - -
274 - - - -
129,283 (641) 641  (641) 641
623 - - - -
79,575 583  (583) 583 (583)
533 - - - -
80,731 583 (583) 583 (583)
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29 Fair values of financial instruments

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Carrying Estimated fair Carrying Estimated fair
Amounts value amounts value
$000's $000's $000's $000's

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 20,180 20,180 26,123 26,123
Balances with related parties 185 185 107 107
Due from other financial institutions - - 3,000 3,000
Loans and advances 125,290 127,436 99,779 108,668
Other financial assets 275 275 274 274
Total financial assets 145,930 148,076 129,283 138,172
Financial liabilities
Due to related parties 857 857 623 623
Deposits and other borrowings 94,644 95,161 79,575 80,596
Other financial liabilities 649 649 533 533
Total financial liabilities 96,150 96,667 80,731 81,752

Fair value estimation

For financial instruments not presented in the Bank's balance sheet at their fair value, fair value is estimated as

follows:

Cash and cash equivalents

For cash assets, the carrying amount is equivalent to the fair value as assets are short term in nature.

Loans and advances

For variable rate loans and advances, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. For fixed
rate loans and advances, fair values have been estimated using a discounted cash flow model with
reference to market interest rates and rates of estimated credit losses.

Other financial assets
For other financial assets, the carrying amount is approximately equal to the fair value.

Deposits by customers

For fixed term deposits by customers, fair values have been estimated using a discounted cash flow model
with reference to market interest rates. For other deposits by customers, such as call and variable rate
deposits, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value,

Due to/from related parties

For due to/from related parties, carrying amounts in the balance sheet are a reasonable estimate of fair
value for these assets,

Other financial liabilities
For other financial liabilities, the carrying amount is equivalent to the fair value.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments not measured at fair value.
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29 Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

Level 1: Quoted market price

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs

Financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are
unobservable.

As at 31 March 2021 l.evel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$000's $000's $000's $000’s
Cash and cash equivalents - 20,180 - 20,180
Balances with related parties - 185 - 185
Due from other financial
institutions - - - -
Loans and advances - - 127,436 127,436
Other assets - 275 - 275
Total financial assets - 20,640 127,436 148,076
Due to related parties - 857 - 857
Deposits and borrowings - 95,161 - 95,161
Other liabilities - 649 - 649
Total financial liabilities - 96,667 - 96,667
As at 31 March 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000s $'000s $'000s $'000s
Cash and cash equivalents - 26,123 - 26,123
Balances with related parties - 107 - 107
Due from other financial
institutions - 3,000 - 3,000
Loans and advances - - 108,668 108,668
Other assets - 274 - 274
Total financial assets - 29,504 108,668 138,172
Due to related parties - 623 - 623
Deposits and borrowings - 80,596 - 80,596
Other liabilities - 533 - 533
Total financial liabilities - 81,752 - 81,752
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30 Credit exposure concentrations

Credit exposures to individual counterparties

Credit exposure concentrations are disclosed on the basis of actual exposures and gross of set-offs. Peak end-
of-day aggregate credit exposures have been calculated using the Bank's Tier One Capital at the end of the
quarter.

The number of individual counterparties, excluding connected persons, where the period end and peak end-of-
day aggregate actual credit exposures, net of individual credit impairment allowances, equalled or exceeded
10% of the Bank's common equity tier one capital was:

Peak end of the
day between the Peak end of the day
previous between the
As at 31 Disclosure As at 31 previous Disclosure
March Statementand 31 March Statement and
2021 March 2021 2020 31 March 2020
Number of counterparties without a credit rating:
- Representing 20-25% of common equity tier one capital 1 1 - -
- Representing 25-30% of common equity tier one capital 1 1 2 2

Credit exposures to individual counterparties (not being members of a group of closely related counterparties)
and to groups of closely related counterparties exclude exposures to connected persons, to the central
government or central bank of any country with a long-term credit rating of A- or A3 or above, or its equivalent, or
to any supranational or quasi-sovereign agency with a long-term credit rating of A- of A3 or above, or its
equivalent. These calculations relate only to exposures held in the financial records of the Bank and were
calculated net of individually assessed provisions.

Credit exposures to bank counterparties

The number of bank counterparties, excluding connected persons, where the period end and peak end-of-day
aggregate actual credit exposures, net of individual credit impairment allowances, equalled or exceeded 10% of
the Bank's common equity tier one capital was:

Peak end of the

day between the Peak end of the day
previous between the
As at 31 Disclosure As at 31 previous Disclosure
March Statement and 31 March Statement and
2021 March 2021 2020 31 March 2020
Number of bank counterparties with an AA- Standard & Poors credit rating:
- Representing more than or equal to 30% and - 1 - -
less than 35% of common equity tier one capital
- Representing more than or equal to 35% and 1 - - 1

less than 40% of common equity tier one capital

- Representing more than or equal to 45% and - - - -
less than 50% of common equity tier one capital

- Representing more than or equal to 50% and - 1 1 1
less than 565% of common equity tier one capital
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30 Credit exposure concentrations (continued)

31

Credit exposures to connected persons

The Reserve Bank of New Zealand defines connected persons to be other members of the BOB Group and
Directors of the Bank. Credit exposures to connected persons are based on actual credit exposures rather than
internal limits. The information on credit exposure to connected persons has been derived in accordance with the
Reserve Bank of New Zealand's Connected Exposures Policy (BS8). Peak end-of-day aggregate credit
exposures to connected persons expressed as a percentage of Tier One Capital of the Banking Group has been
derived by determining the maximum end-of-day aggregate amount of credit exposure over the relevant twelve
month period and then dividing that amount by the Bank's Tier One Capital as at the end of the period. The
rating-contingent limit, which is applicable to the Bank as at balance date, is 15%. There have been no changes
to the limit during the period. Within the rating-contingent limit there is a sub-limit of 15%, which applies to non-
bank connected persons. The aggregate credit exposures below have been calculated on a gross basis, net of
individual credit impairment allowances and exclude advances to connected persons of a capital nature. There
are no individual impairment credit allowances against credit exposures to connected persons, nor are there any
contingent exposures arising from risk lay-off arrangements to connected persons as at 31 March 2021,

Peak end of the
Asat31  day for the year As at 31 Peak end of the day
March  ended 31 March March for the year ended

2021 2021 2020 31 March 2020

$000's $000's $000's $000's

Credit exposures to connected persons 185 2,683 107 5,121
As a percentage of Tier One Capital of the Bank 0.37% 5.40% 0.22% 10.53%
Credit exposures to non-bank connected persons - - - -
As a percentage of Tier One Capital of the Bank 0% 0% 0% 0%

Securitisation, funds, management, other fiduciary activities and the marketing and distribution of
insurance products

As at balance date, the Bank is not involved in:
* The establishment, marketing, or sponsorship of trust, custodial, funds management and other fiduciary
activities; or
+ The origination of securitised assets; or
» The marketing or servicing of securitisation schemes; or
* The marketing and distribution of insurance products or conducting business.

32 Risk management policies

32.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss arising as a result of the diminution in credit quality of the borrower or counterparty
and the risk that the borrower or counterparty will default on contractual repayments under an advance.

Credit risk management
The Bank is responsible for implementing and operating within established risk management frameworks and
policies and has adapted the Bank's credit risk policy to the Bank's customer and product set.

The Bank has a Credit Committee that specifically oversees and co-ordinates the Bank's credit risk management
functions. The Credit Committee has primary responsibility for identifying, measuring and monitoring the Bank's
exposure to credit risk. The Credit Committee reports to the Board on credit risk on a quarterly basis.

The Bank has its own credit and lending policy which has been set by the Credit Committee and approved by the
Board. Bank officers seek Credit Committee approval before deviating from any lending guideline or policy.
Credit approval authorities have been delegated by the Board to lending officers, senior executives of the Bank
and the Credit Committee, compliance with these policies is monitored by the Credit Committee and reported to
the Board.

,
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32.1 Credit risk {continued)

In issuing credit approval, the Credit Committee takes into account the borrower's credit rating, the type of
lending (including margins on advances and the pricing of loans), the security offered, the Bank's single and
group exposures (with reference to the Bank's credit exposure ceilings) and the Bank's exposure to capital

markets.

The Bank has two key systems for controlling credit risk: credit rating models and credit exposure ceilings.

Credit rating models

The Bank assesses risk at the time of appraisal of the loan using its rating model for various types of borrowers.
A business portfolio is assessed on a risk rated basis and a consumer portfolio on a scoring basis.

Gross loan exposures by internal rating

Internal rating as at 31 March 2021

AAA

AA

A

BBB

BB

Not scored
Total exposures

Internal rating as at 31 March 2020

AAA

AA

A

BBB

BB

Not scored
Total exposures

Undrawn
Gross loan facility available  Performance
advances to borrower guarantees
$000's $000's $000's
10,618 1,800 -
52,201 4,757 -
28,345 2,315 -
26,529 1,029 -
1,353 89 -
6,754 4,797 271
125,700 14,787 271
Undrawn
Gross loan  facility available  Performance
advances to borrower guarantees
$000's $000's $000's
12,501 3,248 -
37,938 3,637 -
22,844 3,692 -
16,443 1,927 -
1,537 82 -
8,942 4,195 40
100,205 16,681 40

Internal ratings measure the borrower's credit worthiness across various parameters such as their performance,
financial strength, collateral coverage, value of the account, industry performance and market scenario. In the

above, AAA ratings represent the strongest rating.

Loans and advances not scored primarily include those which are secured by bank deposits held either by Bank
of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited or its parent entity, Bank of Baroda (India).
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32 Risk management policies (continued)
32.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit exposure ceilings
As a means of avoiding concentration of credit risk, the Bank sets ceilings in relation to single/group borrowers,
unsecured borrowers and with respect to each industry sector.

Credit risk mitigation and collateral

The nature of collateral held for each type of financial asset differs. Cash and cash equivalents are considered
zero risk assets and do not have collateral. Amounts due from other financial institutions and related parties are
also relatively low risk exposures and are not collateralised.

The Bank uses a variety of techniques to reduce the credit risk arising from its loans and advances. Enforceable
legal documentation has established the Bank's direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any collateral,
security or other credit enhancements provided.

Housing and other loans for consumer purposes may be secured, partially secured or unsecured depending on
the product. Security is typically taken by a fixed and/or floating charge over property, business assets, or other
assets. Other forms of credit protection may also be sought or taken out if warranted, such as guarantees from
sovereign entities or authorised deposit-taking institutions and overseas banks.

The estimated realisable value of collateral held in support of loans is based on a combination of:

* Formal valuations currently held for such collateral; and

* Management's assessment of the estimated realisable value of all collateral held.
This also takes into account relevant knowledge available to management at the time. Updated valuations are
obtained when appropriate. Refer to note 33 for further information.

Creditworthy customers may also enter into formal agreements with the Bank, permitting both the Bank and the
customer to set-off gross credit and debit balances in their nominated accounts. Financial assets subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements are below:

As at 31 March 2021 - $000's

Gross amounts of Net amounts of
recognised financial financial assets Related deposits not
liabilities set off in the presented in the set off in the
Gross amounts of statement of financial statement of financial statement of financial
recognised financial assets position position position Netamount
(a) ® (c) = (a) - (b) (d) (&) = (0} - (d)
Loans and advances 125,290 - 125,290 6,690 118,600
Gross amounts of Net amounts of
recognised financial financial liabilities
assets set off in the presented in the Related loans not set
Gross amounts of statement of financial statement of financial ~ off in the statement
recognised financial liabilities position position  of financial position Netamount
(@ (b) (c) = (a) - (b) (d) (&)= (0) - (d)
Deposits 94,644 - 94,644 6,690 87,954
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32 Risk management policies {continued)

32.1 Credit risk {continued)

As at 31 March 2020 - $000's

Gross amounts of

recognised financial

liabilities set off in the

Gross amounts of statement of financial
recognised financial assets position
(a) (b)

Loans and advances 99,779 -

Gross amounts of
recognised financial
assets set off in the

Gross amounts of statement of financial
recognised financial liabilities position
(a) (b)

Deposits 79,575 -

32.2 Market risk

Net amounts of
financial assets Related deposits not
presented in the set off in the
statement of financial statement of financial
position position Net amount
(©) =(a)- (b) (d) (&) =(c) - (d)
99,779 8,491 91,288

Net amounts of
financial liabilities
presented in the Related loans not set
statement of financial  off in the statement
position  of financial posiion Netamount
(c)=(a)-(0) (@) &) =(c) - (d)
79,575 8,491 71,084

Market risk is the risk that exposure to price movements in financial instruments, arising as a result of changes in
market variables, will result in a loss suffered by the Bank. The Bank has an Asset and Liability Committee that is
responsible for, among other things, identifying, measuring and monitoring the Bank's exposure to market risk.
The Asset and Liability Committee meets on a monthly basis and receives guidance and technical support from
staff in the BOB head office. The relevant process for each category of market risk is as follows:

Interest rate risk

The Bank undertakes interest rate sensitivity gap analysis on a quarterly basis as a means of monitoring
interest rate risk. Short term interest rate risk is calculated using the Earnings at Risk tool. The Bank ensures
that the tolerance limits in respect of gaps for contractual repricing maturity time buckets are not breached.

Foreign exchange risk

The Bank undertakes analysis to ensure there are no material open foreign exchange positions through
ensuring foreign exchange deposits are matched by corresponding foreign exchange balances held with

financial institutions.

Equity risk
The Bank does not have any equity risk exposure.

32.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk occurs when an institution is unable to fulfil its commitment in the time when the commitment falls
due. The Asset and Liability Committee is responsible for identifying, measuring and monitoring liquidity risk
affecting the Bank, and compliance with the RBNZ's liquidity requirements.

To ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained consistently, the Bank ensures that, in the time buckets of 1 day,
21to 7 days, 8 to 14 days and 15 to 30 days, the cumulative negative liquidity gap should not exceed 5, 10, 15
and 20 percent of cash flows in the respective periods. The Bank reviews the liquidity position on a daily basis to
ensure that the negative liquidity gap does not exceed the tolerance limit in the first four time buckets. In
addition, the Bank prepares monthly maturity gap reports and liquidity assessment reports to facilitate an

appropriately liquid combination of assets and liabilities,

Liquidity risk is measured by flow approach on a monthly basis through Structural Liquidity Gap reports. Dynamic
Gap reports, which, measure liquidity risk on a dynamic basis, are also prepared monthly.
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32 Risk management policies (continued)

32.4 Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events.

The Bank's senior management is responsible for implementing the operational risk management initiatives
formulated by the Board. The Bank's senior management may make recommendations to the Board on
strategies that may improve the Bank's operational risk profile.

32.5 Capital adequacy
The Board and senior management undertake capital planning, in accordance with the Bank's internal capital
adequacy assessment policy. As part of the capital planning process, the Board reviews:

+ The current regulatory capital requirements of the Bank;

+ The targeted and sustainable capital in terms of business strategy and risk appetite; and

» Future capital planning (with a three year outlook).
The capital plan is revised on an annual basis or more regularly, if necessary, to meet the Bank's obligations
under Basel lll. For further information see note 33.

32.6 Reviews of Bank's risk management systems
Bank's risk management policy was reviewed on 26 February 2021 and is valid for two years from that date.

32.7 Internal audit function

The Bank utilises services of a chartered accounting firm to carry out internal audit functions as a control
measure to enable senior management of the Bank to monitor and review the Bank on an ongoing basis. The
Bank is subject to the following internal audit measures:

+ A monthly compliance review is undertaken by senior management of the Bank. The purpose of this review
is to check and confirm constant and concurrent compliance with all systems and procedures by the Bank;
and

+ Internal audit carried out by a firm of chartered accountants appointed by Board from time to time.

Audit committee of the Board

The Bank, in accordance with the fundamentals of corporate governance and in pursuance of the directives of
the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, has an Audit Committee of the Board comprising of three directors. A non-
executive independent director who is a chartered accountant is the chairman of the committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee of the Board met 4 times.

The main functions of the Audit Committee of the Board are to assess and review the financial reporting system
of the Bank to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible. It reviews and
recommends with Bank management the half-year/annual financial statements before their submission to the
board of directors.

The Audit Committee of the Board provides directions and oversees the operations of total audit functions of the
bank, including the organisation, operation and quality control of internal audit and inspection within the Bank
and follow up on the statutory/external audit of the Bank.

The Audit Committee of the Board also reviews the adequacy of internal control systems and discussions with
the internal auditors/inspectors on any significant finding and follow up action. Further, it reviews the financing
and risk management policies of the Bank.
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33 Capital adequacy

The Bank has 40,000,000 fully paid up ordinary shares (tier one capital) issued at NZ $1.00 per share on 22 May
2008 (25,000,000 shares) and 20 April 2009 (15,000,000 shares).

BOB is the sole shareholder. Each share confers on the holder the right to:

* one vote on a poll at a meeting of the shareholders on any resolution to:
« appoint or remove a Director or auditor; or
« alter the Bank's constitution; or
* approve a major transaction; or
* approve an amalgamation under section 221 of the Companies Act 1993; or
« put the Bank into liquidation;

* a proportionate share in dividends authorised by the Board; and

+ a proportionate share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the Bank.

Other classes of capital instrument
The Bank does not have any other classes of capital instruments in its capital structure.

Regulatory capital adequacy ratios are calculated by expressing capital as a percentage of risk weighted
exposures. As a condition of registration, the Bank must comply with the following minimum capital requirements
set by the RBNZ:

* Total regulatory capital must not be less than 8% of risk weighted exposures.,

* Tier One Capital must not be less than 6% of risk weighted exposures.

* The Common Equity Tier One Capital must not be less than 4.5% of risk weighted exposures.
+ Capital must not be less than NZ$30 million.

The capital adequacy tables set out below summarise the composition of regulatory capital and capital adequacy
ratios as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Bank was registered on 1 September 2009 and from
the date of registration to 31 March 2021; the Bank has complied with both regulatory and internal capital
adequacy requirements.

The Bank has considered other material risks not included below and whether to allocate any capital to cover
these risks and concluded that these risks are not significant and have therefore not allocated any capital to
cover them.

Unaudited 2021 2020
Tier One Capital $000's $000's
Common equity Tier One Capital

Issued and fully paid up share capital 40,000 40,000

Retained earnings 9,980 8,872

Accumulated other comprehensive income and other disclosed - -

reserves

Interest from issue of ordinary shares - -

Less:

Regulatory adjustments - -

Deferred tax assets (276) (259)

Total common equity Tier One Capital 49,704 48,613

Additional Tier One Capital

Nil - -

Total Tier One Capital 49,704 48,613

Tier Two Capital
Nit - -

Total Tier Two Capital - -

Total Capital 49,704 48,613
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;’1";:'::::"20 1 ;‘t’;:'cer’;z;sr‘i'sri Risk  Riskweighted  Minimurn pillar 1
Calculation of on-balance-sheet exposures mitigation Weight exposure capital requirement
$000's $000's $000's
Cash and gold bullion 167 0% - -
Sovereigns and central banks - 0% - -
Multilateral development banks and other
international organisation - 0% - -
Public sector entities - 20% - -
Banks (Due from other financial institutions) 20,013 20% 4,003 320
Banks (Due from related parties) 184 50% 92 7
Corporate 21,078 100% 21,078 1,686
Residential mortgages not past due - -
Non property investment-LVR up to 80% 32,708 35% 11,448 916
Non property investment-LVR >80% but <90% 1,822 50% 911 73
Property investment-LVR <80% 60,889 40% 24,356 1,948
Property investment-LVR >80% but <80% 1,818 70% 1,273 102
Past due residential mortgages - 35% - -
Other past due assets - 100% - -
Equity holdings (not deducted from capital) that are - 300% - -
publicly traded
All other equity holdings (not deducted from - 400% - -
Non risk weighted assets - 0% - -
Other assets 2,575 100% 2,575 206
Total on-balance-sheet exposures 141,254 65,736 5,258
Unaudited Credit Credit RISk 0 um plllar 1 capital
As at 31 March 2021 Total conversion equivalent  Average welghted requirement
Calculation of off-balance-sheet exposures exposure factor  amount risk weight exposure
$000's % $000's %  $000's $000's
Direct credit substitute - 0% - 0% - -
Asset sale with recourse - 0% - 0% - -
Forward asset purchase - 0% - 0% - -
Commitment with certain drawdown - 0% - 0% - -
Note issuance facility - 0% - 0% - -
Performance-related contingency 271 50% 136 100% 136 11
Revolving underwriting facility - 0% - 0% - -
Trade-related contingency - 0% - 0% - -
Placements of forward deposits - 0% - 0% - -
Other commitments where original maturity is more than 14,787 50% 7,394 45% 3,323 266
one year
Other commitments where original maturity is less than - 0% - 0% - -
or equal to one year
Other commitments that cance! automatically when the - 0% - 0% - -
creditworthiness of the counterparty deteriorates or that
can be cancelled unconditionally at any time without prior
notice
Market related contracts
(a) Foreign exchange contracts - 0% - 0% - -
(b) Interest rate contracts - 0% - 0% - -
(c) Other - OTC, etc - 0% - 0% - -
Total off-balance-sheet exposures 15,058 7,630 3,459 277
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Residential mortgages by loan-to-valuation ratio
Unaudited

As at 31 March 2021 Does not exceed Exceeds 80% Exceeds 90% Total
80% and not 90%

Loan-to-valuation ratio

On-balance-sheet exposures 95,584 1,827 - 97,411

Off-balance-sheet exposures 4,386 1,216 - 5,602

Total loan-to-value ratio 99,970 3,043 - 103,013

Reconciliation of residential mortgage-related amounts

Unaudited

Residential mortgage loans (as disclosed in Note 18)
Undrawn commitments related to residential mortgages
Residential mortgages by loan-to-valuation ratio

Unaudited
31 March 2020
Calculation of on-balance-sheet exposures

Cash and gold bullion
Sovereigns and central banks
Multilateral development banks and other
international organisation
Public sector entities
Banks (Due from other financial institutions)
Banks (Due from related parties)
Corporate
Residential mortgages not past due
Non property investment-LVR up to 80%
Non property investment-LVR >80% but <90%
Property investment-LVR <80%
Property investment-LVR >80% but <90%
Past due residential mortgages
Other past due assets
Equity holdings (not deducted from capital) that are
publicly traded
All other equity holdings (not deducted from
Non risk weighted assets
Other assets

Total exposure
after credit risk Risk

31 March 2021
97,411
5,602

103,013

Risk weighted

Minimum pillar 1

Total on-balance-sheet exposures

mitigation  Weight exposure capital requirement
$000's $000's $000's
74 0% - -

- 0% - -

- 0% - -

- 20% - -
29,049 20% 5,810 465
107 50% 54 4
23,803 100% 23,803 1,904
31,846 35% 11,146 892
1,829 50% 915 73
33,716 40% 13,486 1,079
- 70% - -

- 35% - -

- 100% - -

- 300% - -

- 400% - -

- 0% - -

2,499 100% 2,499 200
122,923 57,713 4,617
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Unaudited Total conv:r:el:ir: equlszf:r:: Average weigs::z Minimum pillar 1 capltal
31 March 2020 exposure factor amount risk weight exposure requirement
Calculation of off-balance-sheet exposures $000's %  $000's % $000' $000's
Direct credit substitute - 0% - 0% - -
Asset sale with recourse - 0% - 0% - -
Forward asset purchase - 0% - 0% - -
Commitment with certain drawdown - 0% - 0% - -
Note issuance facility - 0% - 0% - -
Revolving underwriting facility - 0% - 0% -

Performance-related contingency 40 50% 20 100% 20 2
Trade-related contingency - 0% - 0% - -
Placements of forward deposits - 0% - 0% - -
Other commitments where original maturity is more 16,681 50% 8,341 55% 4,588 367
than one year

Other commitments where original maturity is less - 0% - 0% - -
than or equal to one year

Other commitments that cancel automatically when - 0% - 0% - -

the creditworthiness of the counterparty
deteriorates or that can be cancelled
unconditionally at any time without prior notice
Market related contracts

(a) Foreign exchange contracts. - 0% - 0% - -
(b) Interest rate contracts - 0% - 0% - .-
(c) Other - OTC, etc - 0% - 0% - -
Total off-balance-sheet exposures 16,721 8,361 4,608 369

Residential mortgages by loan-to-valuation ratio
Unaudited
As at 31 March 2020 Does not exceed Exceeds 80%  Exceeds 90% Total

80% and not 90%
Loan-to-valuation ratio

On-balance sheet exposures 66,374 1,172 - 67,546
Off-balance sheet exposures 6,851 1 - 6,852
Total loan-to value ratio 73,225 1,173 - 74,398

Reconciliation of residential mortgage-related amounts

Unaudited 31-Mar-20
Residential mortgage loans (as disclosed in Note 18) 67,546
Undrawn commitments related to residential mortgages 6,852

Residential mortgages by loan-to-valuation ratio 74,398
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Credit risk mitigation

The following are the gross and non-risk weighted amounts of exposures which are 100% mitigated, by

exposure class:

Total value of on

and off balance

sheet exposures
covered by

Unaudited On balance Off balance  eligible collateral
As at 31 March 2021 sheet exposure sheet exposure (after haircutting)
$000's $000's $000's
Exposure class
Corporate 3,300 1,010 4,310
Other 3,390 3,711 7,101
Total 6,690 4,721 11,411
Total value of on
and off balance
sheet exposures
covered by
Unaudited On balance Off balance eligible collateral
As at 31 March 2020 sheet exposure sheet exposure (after haircutting)
$000's $000's $000's
Exposure class
Corporate 6,609 2,316 8,925
Other 1,882 964 2,846
Total 8,491 3,280 11,771

Operational risk capital requirement
31 March 2021

Implied risk Total operational

weighted risk capital

Unaudited exposure requirement
$000's $000's

Operational risk 8,934 715

Capital adequacy of ultimate parent bank

The ultimate parent bank of Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) Limited is BOB.

31 March 2020

Implied risk
weighted
exposure

$000's
8,000

Total operational
risk capital
requirement
$000's

684

BOB is required by the Reserve Bank of India to hold minimum capital at least equal to that specified under the
Basel lll. BOB is using the standardised method for calculation of Capital Adequacy. This information is made

available to users via the BOB website (www.bankofbaroda.com).

As per latest available data at 31 March 2021, BOB's Tier One Capital was 11.80% of total risk-weighted assets
and total capital was 15.74% of total risk-weighted assets (31 March 2020: Tier One Capital was 11.32% of total
risk-weighted assets and total capital was 13.87% of total risk-weighted assets). BOB's capital ratios during the
year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 exceeded the Reserve Bank of India's minimum capital

adequacy requirements.
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Market risk

Market risk exposures have been calculated in accordance with the methodology detailed in Part 10 of the
RBNZ's BS2A Capital Adequacy framework, and schedule 9 of the Registered Bank Disclosure Statements
(New Zealand Incorporated Registered Banks) Order 2014. Peak exposures are calculated using the Bank's

shareholders' equity at the end of the quarter.

Unaudited

Year ended 31 March 2021
Interest rate risk

Foreign currency risk
Equity risk

Total capital requirements

Year ended 31 March 2020
Interest rate risk

Foreign currency risk

Equity risk

Total capital requirements

Unaudited

As at 31 March 2021
Total credit risk + equity
Operational risk

Market risk

Total

As at 31 March 2020
Total credit risk + equity
Operational risk

Market risk

Total

Capital ratios

Unaudited

31-Mar-21

Ratio

Minimum ratio requirement
31-Mar-20

Ratio

Minimum ratio requirement

End-period capital charges

Peak end-of-day capital charges

Implied risk Aggregate Implied risk Aggregate capital
$000's $000's $000's $000's
4,264 341 5,350 428
466 37 750 60
4,730 378 6,100 488
3,700 296 4,563 365
563 45 1,713 137
4,263 341 6,275 502
Risk weighted
Total exposure exposure or
after credit risk implied risk Capital
mitigation weighted requirement
$000's $000's $000's
156,312 69,195 5,635
- 8,934 715
- 4,730 378
166,312 82,859 6,628
139,644 62,321 4,986
- 8,550 684
- 4,263 341
139,644 75,134 6,011
Common equity  Tier 1 capital
tier 1 capital ratio ratio Total capital ratio
59.99% 59.99% 59.99%
4.5% 6.0% 8.0%
64.70% 64.70% 64.70%
4.5% 6.0% 8.0%
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Buffer ratios - Unaudited

31-Mar-21
Buffer ratio 51.99%
Buffer ratio requirement 2.5%
31-Mar-20
Buffer ratio 56.70%
Buffer ratio requirement 2.5%

34 Regulatory liquidity ratios

The following were the average values of each of the following regulatory liquidity ratios of the stated periods,
calculated based on the average of the close of each working day.

Minimum per
conditions of
registration

applicable to Three months ended Three months ended
Unaudited 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 December 2020
One-week mismatch ratio 0 13.9 23.2
One-month mismatch ratio 0 22.2 271
Core funding ratio 75 116.6 124.2

35 Other material matters

There are no other matters relating to the business or affairs of the Bank, other than those contained in the
financial statements that if disclosed, would materially affect the decision of a person to subscribe for debt
securities of which the Bank is the issuer.
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